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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights

As at 30
September As at 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RRE=+A Rt=A=t+-H
“2-hf -—Z-\f C—E-tf ZZ-"F CZT-nf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHL FEL FHT FEL
Results £5
- Revenue & 330,995 108,716 49,749 36,379 217,068
- Loss -B# (63,662) (88,431) (39,998) (39,189) (81,455)
- Loss per share -gRER
Basic (in HK cents) HAR(BIL) (2.42) (5.89) (2.94) (0.62) (2.07)
Diluted (in HK cents) B35 (B1L) (2.54) (5.89) (2.94) (0.62) (2.07)
(restated)
(BEit)
Financial Position BB
- Non-current assets ~ERBEE 436,512 488,312 516,382 457,038 57,275
- Current assets Y 58,809 65,605 17,124 25,695 26,486
- Current liabilities -nEaRE 110,412 61,903 51,169 53,765 3,244
— Non-current liabilities -kRBaE 107,126 134,599 261,230 206,611 =
- Equity —En 271,783 357,415 221,107 222,357 80,517
Financial Ratios Bt =
- Current assets/Current liabilities ~-RYEE/FBAR 05 1.1 0.3 05 8
- Assets/Equity -EE/ B 1.8 15 2.4 22 1.0

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

3



&,

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

R-ZZE—NAFE+-A+/XH Asat 16 December 2019
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29/F, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
The R&H Trust Co. Ltd.
Windward 1

Regatta Office Park PO Box 897
Grand Cayman KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

AMRERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

ERATERSRE
i

BT

& T T 7E80%

151&

FEERET
hEIRAT (F8) R AR
B R AR AT

AL BT B 7 2 4R 1T
RBRITRDHRAR

AEEERE
255 1R 12 T 26 7 P

% B H
BEAXETAIEBAT
B

o 8 /&
BiE—+ \5k
MEZB=-+hFE

FEROGBFERE

The R&H Trust Co. Ltd.
Windward 1

Regatta Office Park PO Box 897
Grand Cayman KY1-1103
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

R-ZZE—NAFE+=-A+/XH Asat 16 December 2019

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk

STOCK CODE ON GEM
8007

INFORMATION AND ENQUIRIES
15/F

80 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

e-mail: info@globalstgr.com.hk
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CEQ’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the period from
1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 (the “Reporting Period”) for
your review.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the steady development of the
natural gas business recorded a segment revenue of approximately
HK$30,923,000 (2018: HK$42,147,000). In the commodities trading
business, the revenue from the trading of copper segment was
approximately HK$68,691,000 (2018: HK$64,529,000). For the
petrochemical products business launched in 2019, the segment
revenue was approximately HK$226,379,000. The segment revenue
from the leasing business of the steel support axial force servo
system was approximately HK$5,002,000 (2018: HK$2,040,000).
After further considering corporate expenses, financial costs and
certain other expenses, the Group recorded a net loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$31,585,000 during
the reporting period, compared to approximately HK$70,595,000 in
2018.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the Reporting Period, the global economy had been volatile
due to (i) the US interest rate hikes; (ii) the escalating trade tensions
between the US and the PRC; (iii) the depreciation of the Renminbi
against the US dollar; and (iv) the growing possibility of Brexit. In
contrast, the PRC economy remained on track and manageable and
the PRC government had taken a supportive policy to encourage
internal consumption in order to encounter the effects of the trade
dispute between the US and the PRC, such as reduction in the
bank’s reserve requirement ratios to increase money supply in
financial system.
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CEQ’s Statement

The Group remains positive about the prospects of natural gas
supply and trading of petrochemical products from principal
business. In the natural gas supply business, the Group holds
30 years of exclusive gas supply rights in Yichang, Hubei. Under
this advantage, with the future expansion of the industrial park,
the number of potential customers will increase accordingly.
Development needs to be accompanied by a stable natural gas
supply. In 2019, a gas supply agreement with CNPC Natural
Gas Sales Hubei Branch was successfully established to lay the
foundation for stable natural gas supply.

Due to the Mainland launch of “Coal-to-Gas” policy, promoting the
traditional coal-fired enterprises to use natural gas as energy in the
production process. With reference to the PRC Natural Gas Industry
Development Report (2019)* (R B R AR ZERE 5 (2019) ) published
in August 2019, natural gas consumption in 2018 increased by
17.5% (2017 growth rate: 14.8%) as comparing to 2017. The portion
of natural gas consumption from industrial purpose captured 48.8%
to the total natural gas consumption.

Since 2017, the Yichang Government had formulated the “Three
Years Plan”(EE{t TEXZRBARERH AR =FTHHTE) . The
plan made the chemical enterprises along the Yangtze River move
to Yaojiagang Chemical Zone (#Z &L TE ) . Yichang Biaodian’s
natural gas pipeline has covered most area of the zone, which
greatly increased the development opportunities of the natural gas
business.

In the petrochemical product trading business, it plans to develop
in the restructuring business. The Group is expanding its customer
network and diversifying petrochemical products.

At the end of October 2019, the Group completed the acquisition
of a company with insurance brokerage business and became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The Group aims to actively
explore local sources of revenue with the insurance brokerage
business.

The Group will look for new potential growth opportunities in a very
diligent manner through merger & acquisition, business integration
and expansion in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the
Group.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

AEBEUBEHEBRARBEROLLERE
SR RRTFED - R AARBERT L K
SESFEHtEERRE=THF2RAR
BREEE EHEZT ESTXEE/E
MiER BERFNBEMEEE REESH
RRARBEEB BR FERAGREZ
RARME R~ FRY EHE A
RARBOBERABRAAHEHILD R A
RIMNAARRKEERZ RRREZRARRME
TRERE

HRAMERET [HEm ] BRER - 8T ER
KRBRBIEEEZCETEEERBRR VAR
AXRARIERER -2 _T—NLFN\AHE
M (PFBEARARERRE(2019) =F
—\FHRAFEBEH O 7TFRALLERT
17.6% (ZE—+FHEE:148%) - T¥HA
BRARBEREHRARBIBEEEN48.8% -

B-Z—tFUR-BEETRMAGET E
ELTERXRFERBANEREABR=FTHN
) ZAEERTATINEIAERRIIGK
BETITE EERHANKAREECKESR
TEEMRESHBE  KRAMIEINRARE
TR RS -

RECEREBESEH L HEERBES L
MAER AEEEEBAREFPBELEL
tERmREZTE-

RZFB-NF+AE AKBETKEE—MRE
RERBRELEB QR XK BAEER
2EMBAR ARERRURBELER
TR 58 70 A3 2 Yo s SRR

AEEBEREWBEHE EHAHRER
SRHMNEERRERE WK AKE 28
RRAFEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



ARARRE
CEQ’s Statement

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
extend my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders. At
the same time, we welcome Mr. Li Wentao and Mr. Duan Fanfan
who acts as executive director since October and November 2019
respectively. We will adhere to proven management strategy, grasp
market trend and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value
to our shareholders and make new contribution to the community.

Cheung Tuen Ting
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 December 2019
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period, the Group changed its financial year end date
from 31 December to 30 September in order to avoid competition
of resources with other listed companies during the peak reporting
season and remove uncertainty from the variation in the dates of
the Chinese New Year Holiday which put pressure on the workflow.
The Board considered that the change of financial year end date
facilitated the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. The current period of consolidated financial statements
covers a nine-month period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019 and the comparative financial statements cover a twelve-month
period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The comparative
amounts are therefore not entirely comparable.

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$330,995,000
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 as
compared with approximately HK$108,716,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018, gross profit of approximately HK$12,410,000
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 against
approximately HK$6,048,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 and net loss of approximately HK$63,662,000 for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 as compared to loss
of approximately HK$82,911,000 from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue
and results of commodities trading business of both copper and
petrochemicals, natural gas operations and leasing business before
allocation of the corporate overheads is set out in note 11 “Segment
Information” to the consolidated financial statements.

The trading of copper in commodities trading business generated
revenue of approximately HK$68,691,000 for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019 as compared to approximately
HK$64,529,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
trading of petrochemicals in commodities trading business, which
was commenced in 2019, generated revenue of approximately
HK$226,379,000 for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group generated revenue from sales of natural gas and pipeline
installation services of approximately HK$30,923,000 for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 as compared to
approximately HK$42,147,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution
costs, general and administrative expenses and finances costs,
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 was
approximately HK$50,814,000 as compared to approximately
HK$88,839,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing
a decrease of 43% which was resulting from the decrease in finance
costs of approximately HK$17,494,000 attributable to a drastic
decrease in loan from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties upon repayment near the late 2018 and share
option expenses of approximately HK$7,804,000.

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$8,203,000
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 (year
ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$25,697,000), which
consisted of the imputed interest expense on non-current interest
free loan from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its
related parties, interests on bank borrowings, non-convertible bonds
and convertible bond designed at FVTPL.

Loss for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 was
decreased by 28% to approximately HK$63,662,000, compared
with loss of approximately HK$88,431,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018. The decrease in loss for the period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019 was mainly due to the net effect of
impairment losses made on both current and non-current assets (i.e.
goodwill, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets as well as
loan receivables) and the reasons as aforesaid.
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired EEMIRHRKXARTFABER A A (“Yichang
Biaodian”), which is engaged in natural gas supply operation,

in 2016. However, Yichang Biaodian has suffered losses since

acquisition resulting from the following reasons:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

the pipeline installation in Yaojiagang Chemical Zone has been
substantially completed in 2018, which covered most area
of the zone to supply natural gas to factories operating in
the zone. However, due to the slow progress of the chemical
enterprises’ removals and construction of new factories in the
zone, some potential customers did not engage with Yichang
Biaodian for natural gas supply;

the slowdown of the PRC economic growth impacted on the
existing customers’ operation resulting in reduction in the
natural gas consumption as estimated; and

some customers delayed the transformation from coal-boiler to
natural gas boiler as they concerned that the unstable supply
of industrial natural gas happened in 2018, will continue in
2019.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, the management of the

Group performed impairment testing in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) on the
assets belongs to Yichang Biaodian.
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

The key assumptions used in the value in use (“VIU”) calculation
for impairment assessment based on a valuation prepared by an
independent valuer are those regarding the expected average
revenue growth rate, expected average net profit margin and
discount rate for the next five years:

- Expected average revenue growth rate and expected
average profit margin for the next five years were based on
past practices and management’s expectations on market
development; and

- Discount rate was estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the cash generating unit (“CGU”), i.e. Yichang
Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the impairment assessment in 2019
changed from that of 2018:

= In 2019, the expected revenue growth rate estimated for
the next five years was 54%. In 2018, the expected revenue
growth rate estimated for the next five years was 79%; and

- In 2019, the expected average net profit margin estimated for
the next five years was 13%. In 2018, the expected average
net profit margin estimated for the next five years was 11%.

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for the
calculation of the VIU of the CGU. In accordance with HKAS 36,
the recoverable amount should be the higher of (i) the fair value
less costs of disposal, and (i) the VIU. After assessing both the VIU
and the fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because it was
the higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate of 16.44% (2018:
14.41%) that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. There is no change to
the valuation method adopted in 2018 and 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of Yichang
Biaodian was HK$404,734,000 and impairment losses on goodwill,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets of HK$4,207,000, HK$18,127,000, HK$14,287,000 and
HK$117,000 were recognised respectively in 2019.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position of
the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 30 September 2019, the amounts due to Hubei Biaodian
Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Hubei Biaodian”) and its subsidiary and
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his controlled entities were
approximately HK$25,439,000 and HK$18,150,000 respectively,
when comparing approximately HK$20,397,000 and HK$19,253,000
at 31 December 2018 respectively. Hubei Biaodian owns 20.92%
of Yichang Biaodian and Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of

Hubei Biaodian.
The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of the

Group during the period was used for Yichang Biaodian’s capital
expenditure purpose.
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank and other borrowings

The bank borrowings assigned RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$17,729,000) carry an interest at a variable rate, with an effective

interest rate of 8.01% per annum. The bank borrowings are

guaranteed and pledged with several properties owned by Mr. Xiong,

his spouse and a company held and controlled by him.

As at 30 September 2019,

(@)

the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$3,325,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$2,297,000).

the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; and (ii) bank borrowings, (iii) due to directors; (iv) non-
convertible bonds; and (v) convertible bond designated at fair
value thought profit or loss; (vi) lease liabilities; and (vii) due to
a related company totalling approximately HK$120,120,000 (as
at 31 December 2018: HK$98,046,000).

the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 42% (at 31
December 2018: 27%). The gearing ratio was calculated as the
Group’s total borrowings divided by total equity of the Group.

the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.5 (at 31
December 2018: 1.1). The management will continue to closely
monitor the financial position of the Group to maintain its
financial capacity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged a property approximately amounted to
HK$2,304,000 to an independent third party for obtaining an
advance of HK$111,000 as at 30 September 2019 (as at 31
December 2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the quality of
work performed by such suppliers. Legal proceedings were initiated
by the supplier (the “Plaintiff”) and on 14 December 2018, pursuant
to the application from the Plaintiff, the Court in Yichang granted an
order to preserve the bank deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted
to approximately RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$544,000).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out that the Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian agreed with
the repayment terms in relation to the aforesaid amount. Yichang
Biaodian is required to repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April
2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze the bank accounts;
and Yichang Biaodian was required to settle RMB2,000,000 on
or before 30 September 2019 and the remaining outstanding
amount on or before 30 March 2020. The Plaintiff has the rights
to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle
all its debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the Plaintiff on or
before 30 September 2019. Amount of RMB8,787,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$10,006,000) were fully provided as liabilities of
the Group at 31 December 2018. The restricted bank balance was
released on 11 April 2019 upon agreement between the Plaintiff and
Yichang Biaodian.

On 20 November 2019, the Plaintiff has exercised its rights to apply
for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian for settlement of
amount overdue as Yichang Biaodian only repaid RMB200,000 up
to 30 September 2019. Since the case was at preliminary stage, the
management of the Group was assessing the possible outcome that
bringing to Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

BHEE

RZZFE—NAFAA=Z+H AEEHES—
EHF111,0008 T — BB E=FEF—
H#) /2,304,000 TR E (RZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—H:%&)-

HREE

REBEEZZFE-N\F+ZA=+—HILFE"
HEFHMEHF —HERHEEFR ABE
B ER T ET s TEE = e ([R
EDEREEERERF RZZT—N\F+=A
T RIEREZHF  BEEMEREES
REEEFH ZIRITHFRAOAREA78,0007T
(FEE K %)544,0008 70 ) °

MR-ZB—HhE=A+=0 ERBELEEHR
B BRI REREEZERBERR L
MBI EERR - ESEHRANR_Z—AN
FMA=+HzxkzAEEARK200,0007T
A ER@EBRSBRBITR,  REEIEMAA
RZTE—NFAA=ZTHRKZABEEARE
2,000,000 ER=ZE=ZEF=A=+H3
ZABEBTHAEESE MEEEHAX
R —_E-AENA=Z+tASZAAREE
# ARM2,200,0007T * AJ R & B B FER
BLARFEEEREETHMEER - AR
8,787,000t (48 & M #710,006,000/8 7T) E
RZBE-NE+-_A=+—B2HBEHEAK
EEZEBE-XRFIBRTEBRREHRETE
EABEER _T—AENA+— Ak

RZZBE-NAE+-—AZ+RH REETEA
BANBEB LIRS RGN ESFRREE AR
B REAREE_T-NFHhA=+TH EA
2 8{E (B8 A R¥200,0007 - R Z R B
ROMER MASEEEENAEESRR
F AT BEAE R

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

The prospect of 2020 might be clouded by the uncertainties of the
lingering Sino-US trade tension, exchange rate of Renminbi, the
nationwide deleveraging situation, even the slowdown of property
market in China will possibly impede economic growth. The
management of the Group will embrace those challenges and will
continue to optimise the operation efficiency in all Group’s current
business segments, in particular emphasizing the development of the
insurance broker business and the petrochemical commaodity trading
business for developing the services of commodities network step by
step.

Meanwhile, the Group will look for new potential growth
opportunities in a very diligent manner through merger & acquisition,
business integration and expansion in order to sustain the growth
and profitability of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Completion of acquisition of a subsidiary

On 25 July 2019, LW Capital Group Limited (“Purchaser”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with Mr. Poon Kwan Shu (“Vendor”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser agreed to acquire the entire equity interests in the LW
Insurance Brokers Limited (“Target Company”) at a consideration
HK$2,373,000.

The Target Company is principally acting as insurance broker
business.

On 31 October 2019, all the conditions precedents under Agreement
have been fulfilled and the completion of the Acquisition took place
on 31 October 2019. The Target Company had become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and financial result of the Target
Company will be consolidated into the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2019, the Group employed 56 staff members
(at 31 December 2018: 50 staff). Remuneration is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The
Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’

duties, responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 38, has been the
executive Director since 26 July 2017. Mr. Cheung obtained a
bachelor of commerce degree majoring in accounting and finance
from Deakin University Australia in 2007. Mr. Cheung also was the
director of Panamax Aktiengesellschaft, a company listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, from June 2016 to June 2017. Prior to
that, Mr. Cheung also was a financial planning manager at Bank
of China from July 2010 to March 2012, a financial consultant at
Convoy Financial Services Limited from July 2007 to October 2009
and a financial planning manager at FTLife Insurance Company
Limited from September 2012 to February 2019.

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 53, has been the executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* ( _£/8 %
KEBLKHHTIEARF]) . Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd ( F/BEXEM TIEAR A F]) . Furthermore, Mr. Wu is the
director of China Civil Engineering Society (Bl + K Ti2& & ) and
a construction technology committee member of Chinese Institution
of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China Civil
Engineering Society (Bl + A T2+ HERETTREHE) . Mr.
Wu has vast experience in business management and construction
business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Li Wentao

Mr. Li Wentao (“Mr. Li"), aged 37, has been the executive Director
since 11 October 2019. He holds a bachelor degree in Pharmacy
from Hubei University of Chinese Medicine* (j#idt%& & &L K £2)
and a master degree in Economic Management and Investment from
Shanghai Jiao Da Education Group* ( /83X KB E ) . Mr. Li was
the deputy department head of orthopedic department at Shanghai
Jingfeng Pharmaceutical Company Limited* ( F/8 S & &I BE XD H
fR /A &]), and the marketing director of Hubei Zhongchuang Medical
Products Company Limited* (it Al EZE A mAR A F) . Since
2018, Mr. Wu has been the vice president of Hubei Xinwenxing
Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (G4t ¥T X 2L & BT QA A]) . Mr.
Li has vast experience in brand building and integration of market
resources.

Mr. Duan Fanfan

Mr. Duan Fanfan (“Mr. Duan”), aged 36, has been the executive
Director since 8 November 2019. He holds a bachelor degree in
International Business from Charles Sturt University and a master
degree in Professional Accounting from Deakin University. Mr. Duan
was General Manager in Victoria & South Australia of Domino’s Pizza
Enterprises in Australia. He was granted with various Leadership
Awards in the years from 2009 to 2013. Since 2014, he has
been Chief Executive Officer of ATl International Trading Pty Ltd,
specializing in the business development for bilateral import and
export trading between China and Australia. Mr. Duan has vast
experience in retail hospitality services sector and international
trading.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 39, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged in asset
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 52, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988.
Mr. Sun currently serves as Director of Strategy and Business
Development for Deep Voxel Intelligent Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd* (ZRESeERE (EE)BRAF), a company specializing in
artificial intelligence development in the medical field in PRC.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun (“Ms. Huang”), aged 61, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 24 August 2015, She
was a financial manager of a branch office of Shanghai Electric
International Economic & Trading Co., Ltd. ( /8B REIR&HEE
28R 7)), a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric Group Company
Limited (stock code: 2727, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Ms. Huang obtained a certificate of accounting
profession from Ministry of Finance in the PRC. In 2005, she
graduated from Shanghai TV University (now known as Shanghai
Open University) in the PRC with a professional certificate in
business administration.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lau Tat Man

Mr. Lau Tat Man (“Mr. Lau”), aged 50, has been appointed as
the Company Secretary since 10 July 2019. Mr. Lau obtained
his Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from Polytechnic
University of Hong Kong in 1992. He is Associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and has been practising in
company secretarial and compliance in Hong Kong and Mainland
China for more than 25 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Nip Chi Kin
Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 38, is the Financial Controller of the

Group since June 2018. He had 19 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and financial field.
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EEME
Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 January 2019
to 30 September 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 63 and 64.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 23 August 2019,
the financial year end date of the Company has been changed from
31 December to 30 September effective from 30 September 2019.
Details regarding change of financial year end date are disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 23 August 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the period in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EEMSE
Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. The
Company’s reserve available for distribution to its shareholders as at
30 September 2019 amounted to approximately HK$21,713,000 (as
at 31 December 2018: HK$99,211,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the period and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wu Guoming
Mr. Li Wentao
(appointed on 11 October 2019)
Mr. Duan Fanfan
(appointed on 8 November 2019)
Mr. Long Wenming
(resigned on 27 September 2019)
Mr. Han Leiping (resigned on 20 September 2019)
Mr. Chen Hualiang
(retired on 21 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
Ms. Huang Yu Jun
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee
(retired on 21 June 2019)
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Wentao, Mr. Duan Fanfan, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. No director has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has a service contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing on the date of their respective appointment but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of

Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
period.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 September 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERRETHAERARATEH
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HEBEBMWR®G HERORE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND #Z%ﬁﬁ&;ﬁi)a (#8)

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuead)

Interests in the Company RAERAF zER
The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares, TERHIARRZERRESTHABEAL

underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the RFMD FEERND MEH 2 7R A%
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

Number of
underlying
shares
held under Long (L) of
Corporate equity Total short (S) Percentage
Directors/chief executive interests derivatives interests position of interests
REER
TETAERAEZ #E(L)
ES /' BETHAR AEEE HBEROHE BER FKAR(S) BEEDHL
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting 56,000,000 6,000,000 62,000,000 L 4.76%
(Note)
R T k& (BizE)
Mr. Wu Guoming 132,200,000 6,000,000 138,200,000 L 10.60%
(Note)
REALE (BzE)
Mr. Leung Oh Man Martin S 600,000 600,000 L 0.05%
(Note)
RENEE Lik3)
Ms. Huang Yu Jun S 600,000 600,000 L 0.05%
(Note)
BEELT Lik3)
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun - 600,000 600,000 L 0.05%
(Note)
BEERAE (BtsE)
L: Long position = e

Note: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares  [isF: ZEERIERAARETFTES ERER
in respect of the share options granted by the Company to the RABBERR D 2 kg
directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuead)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing
Rules.

BEENBRESTHAERAATH
HEBLIENKRY  HERORE
#Z%ﬁ&)ﬁ&ﬁ (&)

RAERR z#HE (&)

R EXFBBEEN R _F— ﬂiﬂﬂ*ﬂ—
B RARRQEIRIEE S MR RG] £ 35621%

THEREZECMEEMR :JME%B’EGEMJ:m
HRAIFESABIGEHMEFTETEEZRARTE
AARRRRSAATTIEH 2B NARE
EHBEETRAEMBAERNR R HEARH
B (EERBHMBEGRMEXVED) 2B
HERNHESTHEBEAREIORE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FERREEMALIRERQITRKR
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HREBROZERR AR
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 September 2019, other than the interests and short W -_Z—AFNLA=+H RBEZFHEIHPE
positions of the Directors disclosed above, the following person (not &l 5 336{KEE AR AR BEFEE 2 E L MAT
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or  38% ' Br EXIRBE 2 EE#E S AR T4
short positions in the share or underlying shares of the Company as AL (WHARAFTEEHZSITHAE ) R
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under A& Z MMM D P HEAERIAR

Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

BRR#E/£8

Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited
ERRBERESIERRA

Mr. Zhang Hai Ping

RETRE

Mr. Wu Guoming
REHLE

L: Long position

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE SO RERNEE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage of
beneficially controlled the issued
owned corporation Total share capital
HEBRTRE
EREHZER EAZZAEE B BREOH
223,200,000 (L) - 223,200,000 (L) 17.12%
(Note)
(BE)
- 223,200,000 (L) 223,200,000 (L) 17.12%
(Note)
(P3E)
138,200,000 (L) - 138,200,000 (L) 10.60%
L: S

Note: Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited is wholly- KizE: FEHESEEESERATHKEFLEE

owned by Mr. Zhang Hai Ping.

2EHER-

Save as disclosed above, none of the substantial shareholders or  Fr EXFTHEEIIN RZZE—NLFNLA=T
other (other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) H - iZARFRIFEES KIS GG F336158
person had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying FHFE 2 B MLk~ TERM R H A
shares of the Company according to the register required to be kept AT (RNAREEME&EEITEHABRIN W HE
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 September A AR R M BRI D Z RS AR -

2019.
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CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 3 May 2018, the Company and Mr. Lo Hou On (the “Subscriber”)
entered into a subscription agreement, according to which the
Company agreed to issue, and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for in principal amount of HK$20,000,000 with interest rate of 10%
per annum, convertible bond due 2020.

The Convertible Bond are convertible into shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.54 per share at the option of the holder
thereof, at any time on or before the issue date up to the 4:00 p.m.
on the prior to the maturity date. There was no conversion of the
convertible bond as at the date of this annual report. The Company
will redeem each Convertible Bond on the maturity date at its
principal amount together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon.
The issue of Convertible Bond were completed on 4 June 2018.
Upon full conversion of the outstanding Convertible Bond, the
Company may issue 37,037,037 shares, adding the issued shares
of the Company to 1,340,477,037 shares. Details of the Convertible
Bond during the period are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). As at 31 December 2018, 58,600,000
option has been granted by the Company under the Scheme.
Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or
entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group
contribute or is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group as may be determined by the Directors from time to
time, to subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted are
exercisable for a period (up to ten years from the date of grant of the
option) as decided by the Board.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

BREFIAREERBERONE
2 RER

RZBE—ZF+—A=+H ARARHK—
B E S (TZAH8)) RZFT—NF
TZA=+—R - ARARBEZFERD
58,600,00017 FEAAE - ;% FT EIMFF IR HNER &
B H AT 744 o

ZAt Bl ZBMNERTARETEFABRE
AL BABBERESAEE 2 EHNE
EBFLER - RIEZATE EFAAAKEET
MEEBATRLBRE BREOARE W
BRARSBBARZENES EEHEM:
FMEERTEHREEARA WEBRA K
BEARZIMNES EEXEMZEIMNR
RERT (i) ARF] MBARNBEAR
EOEE EEXERERER AR HK(v)
EFNREITERNEREZEMALRES:
HAARGEEHRGAEQERBBRYARE
BzEBREEEMER ARBARRF MR
- RBEFERE BRETRBRERD
HEIEF &% tFHBRITRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



EEME
Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuea)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of share; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day and (jii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of Shareholders’ approval of the
Scheme. However, the total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period from time to time, without prior approval
obtained from the Company’s shareholders.

During the period, 16,400,000 share options had been forfeited.
Details of specific categories of options, please refer to note 44 to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuea)

Details of the movements of share options forfeited during the review
period and outstanding as at 30 September 2019 are as follows:

Number of share options
EREHA

Outstanding

At Forfeited as at

1 January during 30 September
2019 the Period 2019
R=B-n%

RZB-n% hE=tH
-B-8  RERERK i RATE

BREFIAREERBERONE

HFZRER (&)

REBEHER -F—AFNAA=ZTHREKRT

B 0 M B B R

Exercise period
(both dates inclusive)

T8 (BEERRMA)

Exercise price

g3

HKS
BT

EEWT

Closing price
immediately
before the
date of grant

2%

R ABAH
LG

HK$

AT

Directors Bz
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RECESE 600,000 - 600,000

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BERTL 600,000 600,000 S

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REERE 600,000 S 600,000

Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEELT 600,000 - 600,000

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting RnT kL

6,000,000 S 6,000,000

Mr. Long Wenming EXALE 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

Mr. Chen Hualiang BEREL 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

Mr. Han Leiping BETLE 4,000,000 4,000,000 =

Mr. Wu Guoming REAEE 6,000,000 - 6,000,000

Total Directors Ezay 26,400,000 12,600,000 13,800,000

21 December 2017 to
21 December 2019
ZEtFtZAZ-RE
“F-AFTZAZT-A
21 December 2017 to
21 December 2019
“FtFTZAZ+-BZ
ZE-NF+ZA=+-AR
21 December 2017 to
21 December 2019
ZEtFtZAZ-RE
ZE-NFtZA=+-AR
21 December 2017 to
21 December 2019
ZEtFtZAZ-RE
ZE-NFtZA=+-AR
21 December 2017 to
21 December 2019
ZEtFtZAZF-RE
“E-NFtZA=+-AR
18 January 2018 to
18 January 2020
ZZ-\f-A+NHE
“Z-ZE-A1N\R
18 January 2018 to
18 January 2020
ZZ-\E-A+N\HE
“Z-FF-A+NR
18 January 2018 to
18 January 2020
—Z-\5-At+NHE
“Z-FF-A+NR
9 October 2018 to
9 October 2020
“Z-\EtANAZE
ZZ-T5+ANA
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuea)

BREGEREEBERMNE
HFZRER (&)

Number of share options
EREHA
Outstanding Closing price
At Forfeited as at immediately
1 January during 30 September Exercise period before the
2019 the Period 2019  (both dates inclusive) Exercise price date of grant
R=Z-1& 2
RZB-hE hB=+AH BB HATH
-B-B  RERKRY AR TEH(BEEEWA) ke W&
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employees E& 600,000 600,000 - 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0.555
21 December 2019
ZEFtFYZAZ-RAE
ZE-NE+ZAZT-H
400,000 - 400,000 18 January 2018 to 0.785 0.720
18 January 2020
“E-\§-R+NHE
ZZZTF-A1+NAH
31,200,000 3,200,000 28,000,000 9 October 2018 to 0.466 0.475
9 October 2020
ZE-\§tANrRAZE
“Z-ZETANA
Total Employees EEAH 32,200,000 3,800,000 28,400,000
Total All Categories FrBERl & 58,600,000 16,400,000 42,200,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuea)

On 30 September 2019, the total number of shares options of
the Company available for issue under the Scheme had been fully
granted. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is
no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised. There is no consideration for
the application or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The
remaining life of the Scheme is approximately four years and to be
expired on 30 November 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 88% of the turnover of the Group and the largest customer
of the Group accounted for about 54% of the total turnover.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 70% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier of
the Group accounted for about 18% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial interest

in the Group are further explained in the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the period ended 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019, the
Group had the following continuing connected transactions.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement

As EEF A HE®RAKARABRARF (Yichang PetroChina Kunlun
Natural Gas Co., Ltd*) (“Yichang Kunlun”) is owned as to 49% by
HALZ KA G B R A A (Hubei Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd*)
(“Hubei Biaodian”) and Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder
(within the meaning of GEM Listing Rules) of H & MiZ#H XA R F
BB AT (Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.*)
(“Yichang Biaodian”) holding 20.92% equity interest in Yichang
Biaodian, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the ultimate controlling shareholder
of Hubei Biaodian and a director of Yichang Biaodian, each of
Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian, is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) contemplated under the Upstream Natural Gas Sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under GEM Listing Rules.

The omission by the Company to comply with the GEM Listing
Rules requirements to make timely disclosure for the Continuing
Connected Transactions was due to inadvertent mistake and the
delay on the part of Yichang Kunlun in entering into the Upstream
Natural Gas Sales Agreement and the Supplemental Upstream
Natural Gas Sales Agreement as there has been a change in the
management of Yichang Kunlun. The Company wishes to apologise
in this regard and an announcement will be published to provide
details of the Continuing Connected Transactions as soon as
possible.

3 The English translation of Chinese names of the entities are included
for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
translation of such Chinese names.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in GEM Listing Rules) or their respective
associates had any business or interest which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group nor had any other conflict of
interest with the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
period.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.
Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), who was the auditor of
the Group from 2000 to 2017, has resigned as the auditor of the
Group with effect from 30 January 2019. Deloitte, in their letter of
resignation, confirmed that there were no matters in connection
with their resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of
holders of securities or creditors of the Company. The Board also
confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved matter
between the Company and Deloitte, and that they were not aware
of any matters in relation to the resignation of Deloitte as auditor of
the Group that needed to be brought to the attention of holders of
securities of the Company.

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors
of the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019.
RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
to reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorise the Directors to fix
its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Tuen Ting
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

16 December 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix
15 of GEM Listing Rules in the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019 except for the following deviation:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company did not appoint a chairman
from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing the current
structure from time to time and appoint candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the Company, if
identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”)
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Required Standard during
the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules, and
considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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AR E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019, the
Board’s composition and the individual attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder

BExg

ARAXEZEG ([EFE])EE KREER
REERERARR - EXRERTREE
AEBEZER ARFELAEEERKY - &
FERFAKREERB 2RERIR WEB
EZREAEENEREEER EXBKEN
EREBEFABRREE-

BEZZE-NF-—A-BE_ZE-AFNA
=t+EHME EFeERAEUEEFE T
—hWE—A—-BZ_Z-NAFNLA=+HH

meetings during the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September R FEZEee# EFZEeEIRE
2019 are set out in the table below: REHNBERER TR
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year
HERE/ ERERTAETERERY
Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
Ezeel ¥MzES RZZEE EREES RRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, RmTELE 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chief Executive Officer fTHAEH Tam TEm TEm
Mr. Wu Guoming REMELE 4/5 N/A N/A N/A oA
TR TER Tam
Mr. Li Wentao EXEBRLE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 11 October 2019) (RZZ-NEF Tam TEm TEm Tam TER
+A+-BEZA)

Mr. Duan Fanfan BAMEE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(appointed on 8 November 2019) (RZZ-NF TEA TEA TER TEHA TER
+—-ANBEZ{E)

Mr. Long Wenming ENHLAE 1/5 N/A N/A N/A 0A

(resigned on 27 September 2019) (RZZ-NF TEm TEm TEm
NAZTEBEAR)

Mr. Chen Hualiang (retired on 21 June 2019) RZER %4 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0N
(RZZ-NF TEm TEm Tam
~AZT-RERK)

Mr. Han Leiping BRTRE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/

(resigned on 20 September 2019) (RZZ-NF TEm TEm TERm
NAZTHEH)
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



AN A 5 3/
fl= E/ﬁ#&%

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

EEg (s

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

during the tenure of his/her office in the year

HERE/ FRERANETEEAY

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
Ezeel ¥MzES RZZEE EREES RRAE
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2EEE 3/5 N/A N/A 474 01
Tam TiEH
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEERAE 5/5 N/A N/A 3/4 0/1
TER TER
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEENL 5/5 N/A N/A 4/4 0/
TERm TEm
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BERatT (RZE-NE 0/4 N/A N/A 013 oA
(retired on 21 June 2019) ~NAZT-BRIK) TEA TER

N/A: Not applicable

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019, the
Board held five Board meetings to review, among other matters,
the Group’s financial and operating performance and discuss the
business direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board
papers were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 22 in this annual report.

NER: TER

B-Z-NAFE—-—A—-BEZE-Z—-hFNA
—tTEMFE EFERTAREEEEE N
ma (A BR) AEENSEREERR
WilwmEB T RER - SRR ERERE
EEXHERRBZXEZERES -

BEAROLFEEERRMRRARENES

AREMEFEATAZE-

EEEEFRBERAFRF19E2H [E
EREREREENREE] —&-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019 and up to the date of this report, Mr. Cheung
Tuen Ting, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr. Li Wentao, Mr. Duan Fanfan, Mr.
Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms. Huang Yu Jun
engaged in business activities in their respective fields as continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain
informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin has participated
in continuous professional development programs required by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Directors
also participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending seminars, studying reading materials relating to
the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations;
business management; or the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) did not held meetings during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting at October 2019. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration
policy, including that for the executive Directors, and the levels of
remuneration paid to executive directors and senior management of
the Group. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The remuneration paid and payable to the Directors
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 is set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019 is set out below:

b

Remuneration of band

HK$0 - HK$500,000 T AT 500,000/ 7T

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (cContinued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee did not held meetings during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting at October 2019
and work performed included reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and the nomination of new Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019, the
Audit Committee held four meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results,
its risk management and internal control systems, and corporate
governance matters for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019 amounted to approximately HK$1,100,000 and approximately
HK$417,000 respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM
Hong Kong to the Group were in relation to the review service
on taxation, quarter results, and limited assurance services on
continuing connected transaction.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$1,080,000.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 September 2019, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the period from
1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance
and internal audit functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Besides, management continues to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function to an independent external assurance provider, who
has conducted a review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019. The Board considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee,
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing

leads and provides
their implementation by management, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible for
reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility strategies,
principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and overseeing
practices and procedures; and monitoring progress on the
Company’s corporate social responsibility and related activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The following highlights the key risk management measures under

the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements

made by the Group for the period.

1st line of defence - Risk management

Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have been
established and complied with.

Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance promptly
when needed.

The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate goals.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight (Continued)

° The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated with
new business activities and environments, including emerging
risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was adopted
to address risks across various subsidiaries of the Group, to
assess those risks on an integrated group-wide basis.

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal audit, is
subject to review annually, covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s operations, businesses and service units. The results of
these audit activities are communicated to the Audit Committee and
key members of senior management of the Group. Audit issues are
tracked, followed up for proper implementation, and their progress
are reported to the Audit Committee and senior management of the
Group (as the case may be) periodically. The external assurance
provider for internal audit provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the senior management of the
Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an effective
and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage
the risks associated with its business and operations. This policy
is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of the Group
through a holistic and integrated framework so that all material risks
faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification, measurement, reporting
and mitigation;

(i) set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(i) develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business strategy;
and

(iv) enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across the
Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The current company secretory is Mr. Lau Tat Man who replaced Mr.
Chan Hank, Daniel on 10 July 2019. They undertook totally not less
then 15 hours of relevant professional training during the period from
1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting is the compliance officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management on page 19 of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and
capital requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at www.
globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may put to the Board any enquiries about the Group through
its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or in writing sent to
the principal office of the Company at 15/F., 80 Gloucester Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management respond to enquiries
from shareholders promptly. The Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer, chairmen of board committees (or their respective delegates)
and external auditors attend the annual general meeting and are
available to answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders
may also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019. Memorandum and articles of association of the
Company is available on both the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessments of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. Accordingly,
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 54 to 62.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 232, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
September 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit
matters we identified are:

FREETEE

FRER BT FIR AR B XA TR E X A -
AR AHMASEMBRERNEARA/ER
MER - ZEEENANRBMITETERS
EMBHBRRME AR REREE M A% A
TTEHZEFRERBILINER - TE7
RIS ERT RN T -

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BERETSE AREATHETNMEEBRENEE

1. Going concern assessment

FEEEFML

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial  Our procedures in relation to management assessment of

statements, the Group incurred a net loss of going concern included:
HK$63,662,000 for the period from 1 January ZAZEE{TEHEEBHELSETENEFRIE:

2019 to 30 September 2019. And, as of the

date, the Group had a net current liabilities of - Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
HK$51,603,000. These conditions indicated that the assumptions adopted by management in the
there is uncertainty about the Group’s ability to preparation of the cash flow forecasts based on the
continue as a going concern as the Group’s cash historical performance of the Group’s operations and
flows from operations was not sufficient to cover our knowledge of the business.

its operating costs. — RE BEEEBZBERBRENZEMITEHZED
R RMGEMBEHRRNT2 B T —NF—H ZHB A ERENREREREMARRMN X
—HAEZZT-AFNLAZTAHHSHE BEEE4L ERABBRRBRR2EEL-

&5 18 5 8863,662,000/8 L - R - Rz BH - &
EE R RE A E A51,603,000/ 7T ° ZEM N R
¥ BEEEMNRBELEENGERETEEE  RE
B BEBIZEERSRETEANBMNELERK
$o
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

1. Going concern assessment (Continued)

FEKENh (&F)

Notwithstanding the above, the Group’s
management considered that it was appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. Management also
considered that there was not a material
uncertainty in relation to going concern based on
their assessment of the Group’s cash position
and expected liquidity requirements for the
foreseeable future.

BEWN XM BXEEERERR KHERL
EEERRGSMBRABEE -EEENRR
BRERY SEERSMARATRREZERR
HECFEZAM I TFEERAFBERECE
ATHEE M -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THESTNMEERERNEE

Discussing with management their plans for the
development of the natural gas operation, leasing
business and the commodity trading business,
and their plans to control costs, and evaluated the
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts based on
those plans.
HERENRAERERAARER HEXK LA
mEHEB 2B RAESIKAZAE WIRIEZE
SEFTAReRERACEE Y

Considering the impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in the assumptions underlying
the cash flow forecasts and assessed the possible
mitigating actions identified by management.
ZRREARERAZ BARERZEEAI R NHES .
Wt EE R B BRI Pl AL ARITE) -

Assessing the validity of financial support from a
major shareholder of the Company with reference to
the fair value of assets held by the shareholder.
BEARAB —BEERRMAFEE N FHENGERR
REE ISR
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

2. Impairment assessment of goodwill,
intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
BE BEEE YX BERRBUREAEE
ERE G

We identified the impairment of goodwill,
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets arising from Yichang
Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd
(“Yichang Biaodian”) as a key audit matter due
to the fact that Yichang Biaodian incurred net
loss of HK$15,602,000, before impairment, in the
current period.
AZBMITREETRAXRARMNBERAF
(EEBHAELANHE BLEE DX KBE
MREBARERREERTE SBAREFFE It
TIH P E &R H R E AT A HARE A 4 B 18 H R
15,602,000/ JT °
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THESTNMEERERNEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
included:

AZBETTEBRENGENETFEIE:

- Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s independent
valuer, and verifying the qualifications of the
valuer; discussing the scope of its work with the
management and reviewing its terms of engagement
to determine that there were no matters that affected
its objectivity or imposed scope limitations upon it;

- HHEREEBUGERMNBERN BEEXEREIREER
YR EEMNER REBEIRETERE
REMEZEGR NETTESFHZEHTH L
%5 H e hn &5 I R I

- Confirming that the approaches it used are in
compliance with the requirement under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”;

- WREMRANFTEFABEEGFELEI6HE [EE
B BBk

- Analysing the underlying cash flows used in the
models to determine whether they are reasonable
and supportable;

- SR ERARAPEANEBRRERE UEBERS
ERABEEZAE:

ki
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THESTNMEERERNEE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Impairment assessment of goodwill,
intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

HE EBFEE U BERREURERAEE
ERERE (&)

As stated in note 24(a), the Group engaged
an independent professional valuer to assist in
an impairment assessment by estimating the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
with reference to value in use calculation, which
required significant judgement on assumptions
and inputs adopted in the underlying cash flows
and in selecting an appropriate discount rate.
Wkt 24 - ERERABEIEXGER
FRB2EZGBEESR ””&%qufﬁiFE%fﬂﬁT
WoeR(EFEHNEERSREP RNEE

AHEBRRERRANBRR LB ABBIELHERH
7)) - WBhETTIRE R -

Based on the assessment, impairment loss of
HK$36,738,000, in aggregate, were recognised
on the goodwill and intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
Yichang Biaodian as at 30 September 2019.
ERFE - RZE-NAFNAA=TH HEEFH
ZEBRBVEE ME BEIKEAREHE
B E WRRE E 18 & 36,738,000 7T

Understanding the projected cash flows, including
the assumptions relating to revenue growth rates
and comparing operating margins against historical
performance;

TRIERAR SR

BE(ERABRAERENRR) R
RSN EREBE

=~|:

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, inputs used for
the cash flow forecast and factors considered in the
discount rates and assess these rates; and
ERARBMITHAF HEERS BFEEETE
BenERAMBHABEBAMRBREPERNE
EWAEZELE R

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation
to the impairment assessment.

A R EF A AR RENT D M-

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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BB EN RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

16 December 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BT NF-—A—BE-ZT-NFENA=THHME For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—h&F H=E
—A—B%& —E-N\F
—Z2-—h& +=-A=+-—H
hB=+HHH IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FiET
Continuing operations BEKSEXER
Revenue g 8 330,995 108,716
Cost of sales 5B K AR (318,585) (102,668)
Gross profit EF 12,410 6,048
Other income H e A 9 6,581 2,241
Other losses Hibgia 10 (211) (148)
Gain/(loss) on fair value change on EERAFEFABER
convertible bond designated at (MERAFEFTAERE])
fair value through profit or loss 2aiRES s AT E
(“FVTPL") 2z, (E8) 3,940 (4,186)
Selling and distribution costs HE Ry KA (16,706) (18,917)
General and administrative expenses —#& R 1T X H (25,905) (44,225)
Impairment loss on property, WE BE &
plant and equipment LEREESE 21 (18,127) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets &2 & & &l (E F5 18 25 (15,057) =
Allowance for trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 5 6(b)(i) (50) =
Allowance for loan receivables U B TR 6(b)(ii) (7,138) =
Allowance for bond receivables e E SR 6(b)(ii) (177) =
Finance costs B 75 R AR 12 (8,203) (25,697)
Loss before tax R AT BT 1B (68,643) (84,884)
Income tax credit I8 fiig & 13 4,981 1,973
Loss for the period/year from REFELCEEL 2
continuing operations 8 FREE 14 (63,662) (82,911)
Discontinued operations ERILEEEER
Loss for the period/year from REERIEEEER
discontinued operations B/ FANEE 18 = (5,520)
Loss for the period/year B EREE (63,662) (88,431)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EUW =
Item that may be reclassified to ARt E 7 85
profit or l0ss: Bam2EE -
Exchange differences arising on B BmMERBRER
translation of financial statements 2INEREELL
to presentation currency EHEE (16,303) (6,208)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BT NF-—A—BEZZT-NFENA=THHME For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—h&F H=E
—A—B=%& —E-N\F
—E—-h& +-A=+—8H
HhB=+HHH IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FE&T FiET
Other comprehensive income B FREMEmEkE
for the period/year, net of tax (EHH) (16,303) (6,208)
Total comprehensive income B/ EREXERBASRE
for the period/year (79,965) (94,639)
Loss for the period/year LTATESGSH R
attributable to: BE:
Owners of the Company ZN/NECIE Z DN (31,585) (70,595)
Non-controlling interests IEVE IR M = (32,077) (17,836)
(63,662) (88,431)
Total comprehensive income for U TATEMESH SR
the period/year attributable to: EHKFHEE:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE ¥ =N (38,745) (73,799)
Non-controlling interests IEVE R = (41,220) (20,840)
(79,965) (94,639)
Loss per share BRER 20
From continuing and discontinued REZFELEE R
operations BRIEEEET
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (FRABMW) (2.42) (5.89)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (OB (2.54) (5.89)
From continuing operations REFELCEER
Basic (HK cents per share) ER(FRAM) (2.42) (5.43)
Diluted (HK cents per share) #E (ZRBI) (2.54) (5.43)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—NHFNLA=+H Asat30 September 2019

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZZB—-NF Eé:%—)\i
hBA=+H +=-A=+—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHExT FHT
Non-current assets IRBEE

Property, plant and equipment LE R 21 242,422 277,688
Right-of-use assets EREEE 22 4,811 -
Prepaid land lease payments TEN T A & IR 23 - 1,606
Goodwill Bl 24 - 4,323
Intangible assets mEE 25 178,685 204,658

Deposits for acquisition of WENBARIES
subsidiaries 28 6,830 -

Deposit for acquisition of property, WEDE BE X
plant and equipment REES 3,764 =
Long term deposit RHES 28 - 37
436,512 488,312

Current assets REBEE
Prepaid land lease payments AN L EFKIA 23 - 33
Inventories FE 27 370 492
Trade and other receivables JE W E 5 Ko H At BR R 28 22,783 11,662
Loan receivables JE W B K 29 12,799 29,504
Bond receivables JFE WS 1F F 30 9,710 13,125
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable A Y [@] 3 & #

(MEEH]) 6,940 7,783
Current tax assets mERIEEE 161 165
Restricted bank deposits X PR B IRITF R 31(a) - 544
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 31(b) 3,325 2,297
56,088 65,605
Assets classified as held for sale 2EAFBIEHEELEE 32 2,721 =
58,809 65,605

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—NFNLA=+H Asat30 September 2019

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—h&F Eé:%—)\i

hBA=+H +=-A=+—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=2 FExT FHEIT

Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables FERTE 5 I H AR 5K 33 50,537 44,922

Contract liabilities GHBE 34 2,396 2,852

Lease liabilities MEBRE 35 2,705 =

Due to a related company R —RE@EBATZRIE  52(d) 554 -

Due to directors B EEFIE 36 347 2,105

Non-convertible bonds AR & 37 31,885 9,747

Bank borrowings WITEE 38 2,216 2,277

Convertible bond designated at EEERAFERFA

FVTPL B2 IR ES 40 19,771 =
Current tax liabilities MEHIBAE 1 =
110,412 61,903
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (BB BEFE (51,603) 3,702
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABEE 384,909 492,014
Non-current liabilities kFBEB
Due to non-controlling shareholders of &1 — Rt @ A 7 2 3F1% %

a subsidiary and its related parties AR R I H B8 & 5 BUE 39 43,589 39,650
Lease liabilities HEAE 35 540 -
Non-convertible bonds Tl E S 37 3,000 3,000
Bank borrowings RITEE 38 15,513 17,081
Convertible bond designated at FVTPL #5E R A FE A

B 2 T RRES 40 - 24,186

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE A G 41 44,484 50,682
107,126 134,599

277,783 357,415

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = Bk & B &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE—NHFNLA=+H Asat30 September 2019

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=B-NF RZZE—N\F
hBA=+H +=-—A=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{ig=s FHE T FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARFE
Share capital [N 42 32,586 32,586
Reserves G 43(a) 34,398 231,347
Equity attributable to owners of RAGHEE AEGER
the Company 66,984 263,933
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) FE1E AR HE 2
([FEfERgrER]) 210,799 93,482
Total equity EZBHE 277,783 357,415

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2019 and are R_-ZT—NF+ A+ ~BEEZFSH &L

signed on its behalf by: BTIEERRES:
Cheung Tuen Ting Wu Guoming
RIGS R BB

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i 67
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE AR
Subsidiary
Share Capital Share Other ~ Translation ~ Share options sharesto  Accumulated
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve be issued losses Total NCI Total equity
3
A& EXGE REHEE ARl BERE  BRERE WEAIRG 2itEE at  FERER BH8E
(note42)  (note 430)i)  (mote 43plfil)  (ote430lv)  (note 430)N) (note 44) (note 46)
(W) (Weeasp)  (Wsesom)  (REkaaping)  (BiEE43) GED) (Hsa6)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T Tin Tin T T TR TR ThRL Tin Tin Tin
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\%-A-8 28,275 7540 223,502 32102 (347 2446 - (185,864) 107,654 113,453 21,107
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENEEE - - - - (3.204 - - (70,59) 73799) 20840) (94,639)
Forfeiture of share options granted (note 44) R R iR (Hiitad) - - - - - (542) - 542 - - -
Disposal of interest to NCI (note 47(d) HERRTHARER
(Wtan) - - - - - & & 3 3 (35) -
Issuance of ordinary shares FrEER 4276 - 62,937 - - - - - 67213 - 67213
Recognition of share-based payments (note 44 BRHRABERA
(Hiztaa) - - - - - 7804 - - 7804 - 7804
Exercise of share option TEBRE % - 995 - - (251) - - 9 - 9
Advanced receipts for capital contributions BUEE (Fiitae)
(note 46) - - - - - - 153,317 - 153,317 - 153,317
Deemed capital contribution arising fromnon- ~ ~EREAR 2R R
current interest-free loan fromnon-controlling~ EBE A REFTHEEER
shareholders of a subsidiary and fs related EE7BETE (M)
parties note 39) - - - 870 - - - - 870 904 1,174
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-A 32,586 7540 287,434 32912 (3,581) 9,457 183,377 255,882) 263,933 93,482 357,415
At1 January 2019 R=F-7§-B-A 32,586 7,540 287,434 32,972 (3,551) 9457 153,317 (265,882) 263,933 93,482 367416
Total comprenensive income for the period HR2ERELE - - - - (7,160) - - (31,689) (38,745) 41,200 (79,985)
Subsidiary shares issued to NCI (note 46) AEBRERET b
GEZ) - - - 30,145 - - (153377) - (23232) 123,232 -
Deemed disposal of interest to NCI (note 47(d)) :
{ o o o (60,945) 1,119 - - 141 (35,05) 35,006 -
Forfeiture of share options granted (note 44) R BB (Fritae) - - - - - (3491) = 3491 = = =
Deemed capital contribution arsing fromnon- ~ ~EHBAR 2 RRKER
curent interest-free loan fomnon-controlling~~ EBEH REFTHEEER
shareholders of a subsidiary and fs related EE7BIETE (M)
parties note 39) - - - 83 - - - - 83 250 333
At 30 September 2019 RZF-7FNAZTR 32,586 7540 287,434 12,255 (9,532) 5,966 - 269,265) 66,984 210,799 211,183
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—h&F H=E
—A—HBZ& =—\F
—ZEZ—-hh& +=-ZA=+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g=s FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBHAERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax PR B A ES 18
Continuing operations B E TS (68,643) (84,884)
Discontinued operations ERIERERT - (5,520)
(68,643) (90,404)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation of property, LER L
plant and equipment we 13,530 13,490
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEERE 2,074
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 5,711 8,492
Amortisation of prepaid land A LA & SRIEHE 5
lease payments - 39
Finance costs B 75 B X 8,203 25,697
Interest income B WA (2,295) (1,067)
(Gain)/loss on fair value change on BRI FEFABRZZ
convertible bond designated at ARk ES s A AFE
FVTPL 28 (Wx) BE (3,940) 4,186
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BWE K
plant and equipment B E! - 424
Loss on de-registration of M~ R EUSE M 2
subsidiaries E1a 94 48
Impairment loss on intangible assets &2 & & B (& §5 18 15,057 4,500
Impairment loss on goodwill GEENEREY Fi 4,207 8,005
Impairment loss on property, Y- WE REERE
plant and equipment &5 18 18,127 -
Impairment loss on FREEERESE
right-of-use assets 117 S
Allowance for trade receivables FEUWE 5 BR B 50 =
Allowance for loan receivables e E SR 7,138 =
Allowance for bond receivables JE U E 5 177 =
Other receivables written off H b 1 U SR I8 8 10 -
Share-based payment expense AR BEBAN KA - 7,804
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB MEEAR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & &
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BTN —A—HE-%—

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—h&F HE
~A-HE —E-N\F
=¥ +-_A=1+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 F&T FET
Operating cash flows before B #EAE 2
working capital changes ,i“( MBS HE (383) (18,786)
Increase in trade and other receivables [ & 5 I H fth §E 7K 18 41 (11,238) (7,169)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(3Em) 122 (198)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted ZBRFIRITFER A (5
bank deposits ) 544 (544)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other JEfTE 5 M EAEEE &/\Zﬁ
payables and contract liabilities BEE M CRd 1,463 (8,081)
Increase in amount due to FE A< A B 5 B IB 18 7J[I
a related party 554 -
Cash used in operations KREMBELRE (8,938) (34,778)
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ S (18) (37)
NET CASH USED REXBEZRESFHE
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (8,956) (34,815)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBFSERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, s BB k&
plant and equipment (6,182) (9,932)
Proceeds from deposits for disposal of L EWE - MENEZHEZ
property, plant and equipment FRER1S 3KIB 2,884 -
Interest received 2 W F B 1,823 942
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE - HEK
plant and equipment JE RIS ROR - 1,190
Increase in loan receivables J*%Z&/TM‘)JIJ (15,580) (29,439)
Receipt from repayment of loan Uk B W B BOE 3R
receivables 24,850 -
Increase in bond receivables JE Uk & 532 N (3,000) (13,000)
Receipt from repayment of bond I B e W B 58 5K
receivables 6,500 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BB AR B NIZS
subsidiaries (6,830) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of s B Rk
property, plant and equipment Bfties (3,764) =
Cash inflow arising from acquisition of WEE—MM B AR EEZ  47(a)
a subsidiary ReRE - 164
Decrease/(increase) in VAT recoverable 7] I [B] 32 & & 4>
(#n) 843 (1,040)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REEHMEB,
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (Ffiif)BR&RHE 1,544 (51,115)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BRE{ B &
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NENALA=F+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-—Z—h&F HZE
—H—HBZ& —E-N\F
—ZE—h& +=-ZA=+—H
hB=+BHH IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®EZEFESREHKE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of BT LR ATERUE
new ordinary shares - 67,992
Repayment to a shareholder of BRTFARRBRE  FHE
the Company, net of - (25,355)
Repayment to non-controlling BRT—HEMMBARZIEE
shareholders of a subsidiary BREREEES F5E
its related parties, net of (1,598) (156,742)
New bank borrowings raised BEMWIBITEE - 17,080
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due  ENZESZHIE (Bd)
to directors 3 hn (1,757) 2,541
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMR ffé & (2,161) -
Proceeds from convertible bond REEEERAFEF ABE
designated at FVTPL 2 Al B 5 2 RIS SIE - 20,000
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds 2% & 7~ A] # i% & %5 2
PR 15 38 20,748 12,500
Repayment of non-convertible bonds ,\i?;T—H@Hx%%" (296) -
Repayments of bank borrowings EERTEE (1,160) (2,376)
Advance receipts from EUEE
capital contribution - 153,377
Interest paid ERALE (1,404) (7,724)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METHFESRSEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 12,372 81,293
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReREASEHEEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (GBi4») i iniE 58 4,960 (4,637)
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEERBE) 2 B
changes (3,932) (135)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i &Y ReRELEH
AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD/YEAR 2,297 7,069
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H /S£XBE¢RBESEHE
AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR 3,325 2,297

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place
of business is 15/F., 80 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 30
September 2019, Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading
Co., Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is
the ultimate parent and Mr. Zhang Hai Ping is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

—REH

REEBEBRBERAR ([RAAR)E
HEHSRERNSHESREAAE
AR BERRER QG - AT
% FZ i ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands - ¥ 4 %
B 2 Mok R B BB S T TE809R15
BoARRA RN ERBHERIHE
PR2A] ([HE3ZFT] ) GEM BT »

ARABR—HRERBRAR HNE R
FAZIBEBENGAMBHRERME
26 °

ARAREERR R_F—NLFNhA
ZTHE REBEAMKILZARELR
BEREZERABSRKTF RG] M
REBFRES/EARRN KRR -

LR

ZEGAUBREDRBEEESMA
g ([BEEHMRAg)BH2REE
ABAMBREER ([BEMBHRELE
A RE - BAENBREEBERS
SRS 2R ([ EBM SRS AEA])
BEAGHER([EHGHEL]) R
RE - ZEREVBRENFTEB AN
GEM#FEH LW Al 2 A H B G UA K
BB QRGO (BB ENEE22E ) 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Directors have given careful consideration to the going
concern of the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred
a net loss of HK$63,662,000 for the period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019, and, as of that date, the Group
had net current liabilities of HK$51,603,000. In addition, as
at 30 September 2019, the Group had capital commitments
and other commitments amounting to HK$7,102,000 and
HK$973,000 as disclosed in note 50 and 51 respectively.

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a substantial shareholder and a
director of the Company as at 30 September 2019, has agreed
to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group will
be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due in the
coming twelve months after the period ended 30 September
2019.

In addition, approximately HK$7,500,000 non-convertible
bonds subsequently at the maturity have been renewed.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

WMEEXE (&)

BRI AGDHME THA LEE
RIZBEMBHRERER YRAKEZ
SRR E R A A HRF KA -
SRRt RN A ST MR AT S B
REVs A EREERBATMES
TR REFHNER  EREPENKR
BRI FER A M K o

ERAEERE-_T—ALF—A—8Z
—E-hFAA=ZTBHBEELEIE
¥ $863,662,000/8 - MBI ZEZ HH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Taking into account the above factors, the Directors are of
the opinion that, together with the internal financial resources
of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next twelve
months commencing from the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

During the period, the Group changed its financial year end
date from 31 December to 30 September in order to avoid
competition of resources with other listed companies during
the peak reporting season and remove uncertainty from the
variation in the dates of the Chinese New Year Holiday which
put pressure on the workflow. The Board considered that the
change of financial year end date facilitated the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
current period of consolidated financial statements covers
a nine-month period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019 and the comparative financial statements cover a twelve-
month period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
comparative amounts are therefore not entirely comparable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS and a number
of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following new or revised HKFRSs are relevant to the
Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting model
for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16
did not have an impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor. The lessor accounting requirements are brought
forward from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to

previous accounting policies and the transition options

applied are set out below:

(@)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019,
the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continuea)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(®)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 7.07%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption and
practical expedients at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16:

()  elected not to apply the requirements of
HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to
leases for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease
term ends on or before 30 September 2019;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EAFIIRRBIETEBYHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S 28| (&)
STANDARDS (continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITRKEITEEMKERE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

(i)  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for
similar class of underlying assets in a similar
economic environment.

(i) used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension options;

(iv) excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an
alternative to an impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 49 as at 31
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:
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Operating lease commitment at RZE-NFTZA=+—0®
31 December 2018 K TR B AOE 2,247
Less: total future interest expenses Tk R R B L 4B EE (45)
Present value of remaining lease payments, W —_Z—NF—H—H
discounted using the incremental {5 F 1% = f5 3RF =
borrowing rate and lease liabilities BRIR 2 R HE RN IR E R
recognised as at 1 January 2019 BRHEEEE 2,202
Of which are: He:
Current lease liabilities BNEfEEAE 1,172
Non-current lease liabilities JEREHERE 1,030
2,202
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

®)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continueq)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have been
recognised at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the statement of consolidated financial position at
31 December 2018.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on leases previously classified as finance leases
is concerned, the Group is not required to make
any adjustments at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, other than changing the captions
for the balances. Accordingly, instead of “Finance
, these amounts are included within
and the depreciated carrying
amount of the corresponding leased assets is

leases payables”
“Lease liabilities”,

identified as right-of-use assets. There is no impact
on the opening balance of equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continueq)

The following table summarises the impacts of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated

3. RAHTREEBITEBUBR

H28| (#)
a) ERFTRCEIEEMERE

R (&)

BB BHEERE165HE
(%)

®)

AN B EIERBRELE
&(#)

TRBARKE LSS ERE
EHE16R Y AN KBS E M

statement of financial position: BRRAENZE:
Effects of adoption of
HKFRS 16
RaBEHBRE
ERFE16ENTE
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
31 December Re-  Recognition 1 January
Line items in the consolidated 2018 classification of leases 2019
statement of financial position TRHEAMBEREER RZE-N\& RZE-NF
impacted by the adoption of F1RFENRNEEHE TZA=+-H -A—H
HKFRS 16 RREFRAFIRNEE HEREE ENNE HE®Z HEREA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AT TAL FET
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets TREEE - 1,639 2,202 3,841
Prepaid land lease payments B L EERE (FF)
(Note) 1,639 (1,639) - =
Liabilities =1
Lease liabilities HEAE - - 2.202 2,202
Note: B -

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC own
used properties were classified as prepaid land lease as
payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion of
prepaid land lease payments amounting to HK$33,000 and
HK$1,606,000 respectively were classified to right-of-use
assets.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

()

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as
a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. This results
in a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17
had been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their principal element and interest
element (note 47(c)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows and operating cash
outflows respectively. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the cash flow statement (note
47(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (Continued)

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
the Group’s financial result and cash flows for the
period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019,
by adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS
16 in these consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts
that would have been recognised under HKAS 17 if
this superseded standard had continued to apply in
2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018
corresponding amounts which were prepared under
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

3. RHAFITRLETEBHBER
HER (&)

A=A

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITIRKBITEBHERE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

()

R (&)

BB BHEERE165HE
(%)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the (c) HIAREEYFHRERE 2T

Group (Continued)

ENFE (H)

Year ended

31 December

Period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 2018
Bz

ZE-N\E

+ZB=1-H

BZE-AE-A-RE-E-NENA=THHH LEE

Deduct:  Hypothetical
Estimated  amounts for
amounts the period Compared
related to from 1 January  to amounts
Add back: operating 2019t0 30  reported for

Amounts HKFRS 16 lease as September the year ended
reported  depreciation if under 2019 as 31 December
under  and interest HKAS 17 ifunder 2018 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
BUORERE
B ER

kR S8 REFEEH

BREEE B-F-hF  EARH

eiEl  -B-HE HEBREE

BE  mE:EE  EUREE  -F-nE BN\
ERRBRE MHREEY  LEHEN AA=TR TA=t-H
ERE16%  F168FER fhitE®  HENBR LFEZEN
] MERX (HaE1) &8 &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TR TR TET

Financial result for the period from R4 % i# Bt 15 R 5 % B 5165
1 January 2019 to 30 September ¥ ENE-Z-AE-A-H
2019 impacted by the adoptionof Z=ZE-AEAA=+H

HKFRS 16: HEREES:
Loss from operation BEFR
Finance costs BBRA
Loss before taxation BB ATE R
Loss for the year ERER

(60,440) 2,074 (2,389) (60,755) (69,187)

(8,209) 228 = (7,975) (25,697)
(68,643) 2302 (2,389) (68,730) (84,884)
(63,662) 2302 (2,389) (63,749) (82,911)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RHFFTRLEIT BB BER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING H28| (#)
STANDARDS (continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERAFIRKEITIEBHBERE

R (&)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BEEUBHREEREI6EHE
(%)
(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the (c) HAEBFYBFERERE LT
Group (Continued) ENEE(E)
Year ended
Period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
30 September 2019 2018
52
—E-\E
BE-E-N§—-HA—-HE +=-A=1+-AH
“E-AEAARZTAHEME tEE
Hypothetical

amounts for
Estimated the period Compared

amounts from to amounts
related 1January  reported for
to operating 2019 to the year
Amounts leases as 30 September ended 31
reported if under 2019 as if December
under HKAS 17 under 2018 under
HKFRS 16  (notes 1 & 2) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
EMBEER
g3t ER

F17% REFHEH

BREBEE BH-Z-hE  EAE7H

B £ -B—-B% HBEREZR

BEEEHE  F175EE —E-hE —E-N\f
HEED  KEREEH  HA=+R +=A=t-H
F165E 2K hit&E  HENER LEEREN

weE (WEike) 8 ¢H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL TEL FEL TEL
Line items in the consolidated TRHEEMBEREER
cash flow statement for FIRFENE - 1E
the period from 1 January 2019 —A—-HRZ-E-hE
to 30 September 2019 impacted NA=tEHEGEHEE
by the adoption of HKFRS 16: RERATIRNER:
Cash used in operations LEFMFEC RS (8,938) (2,389) (11,327) (34,778)
Net cash used in operating REEEMECRL TR
activities (8,956) (2,389) (11,345) (34,815)
Capital element of lease rentals paid  ERHHERENE RS (2,161) 2,161 - -
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 THEEHRLHF 2HH (228) 228 - -
Net cash generated from RETBEHLEE
financing activities 12,372 2,389 14,761 81,293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

()

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the

Group (Continued)

Note:

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases”
is an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in
2019 that relate to leases which would have been
classified as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that there
were no difference between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases entered into in 2019
would have been classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still applied in
2019. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order
to compute hypothetical amounts of net cash
generated from operating activities and net cash
used in financing activities as if HKAS 17 still
applied.

3.

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BRANFRR] RAMERT B R M B 3R

=]

(a)

H2A| (#)

- A

FERHTREETERTBRE

R (&)

BB BHEERE165HE

(%)

) HAEEYBEFRERALR

=4

ZE (&)

GES

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

[ERKEHENMHKS
BIR-_Z-NERER
ENMEt HEAED R
REEHE(RRER
SHENFITHRR =T
—NWEFEDHRERIWEE
BRI fAFTBREASH
RenEvHTEEZR .
BFBERZ-ZZ-NEFFZL
MESREBEEESER
%17EF‘LZME“*EJ%Z«<:£%H
E(REABEEFENE
17ﬂﬁé_f—ﬂ¢fﬁ7’iﬁ’5
B) FREBEEHRETE
HERTEG -

ExRPZERESRLIH
MEETHEELE 5
T EEEEBRBEES
FHEEMEEDMEZR
@%EE’JTEJ‘“%%E wan
S ERFE1THRNIR
}3§FH°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER (#)
STANDARDS (continuea)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2019. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

BRANFRR] RAMERT B R M B 3R

BB EERERZH T RESZ

ABEBMBHREER

M

AEETERPEAR-_F—A
F-A-BHRBZMEEFELED
AR R ERZ #R] RAEER]
FREMBHRE LD - ZFHET R

ERIRBMBEREERBEUAT
AR B AN SR E AR R 2 R -

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on
or after
RT5 B
ZEREZ
S HEER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of
a business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of material

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)
Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

FREWBREEAFEIF (BETA)
EBHEE

ERGEAE 1R REB G ER
F85 (BRI R)EXRNER

FEUBREEANFITHRRBEL

BEWBREEAFOW FEEF

R E395% R BB M 15 A £ R
FTH (EFTA) M REENE

EEMBHRELENE10R BB G ER

F28% (BAIA)REERERE Q7]
HAZLEZMZEERETTE
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—E-_TF—H—H

1 January 2020
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1 January 2021
=
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1 January 2020
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To be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continuea)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, interpretation
and amendments, certain of which are relevant to
the Group’s operations. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the Directors of the Company,
no significant impact on the financial performance and
position of the Group is expected when they become
effective except for HKFRS 3. Amendments to HKFRS 3
clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of
a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 October 2020.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

BRANFRR] RAMERT B R M B 3R

H2A (7)

A=A

(b)

CHEMEERERZHTRESZ
AEBMBHREER (&)

REBERBTEZETHIT L
BRI R BB REIIAR (HFE
FEAEEZEHLBE HTER
BARRESELOVBTE B
MEERETEHAEENITE
RARMRREKRERAZE EEB
B 75 3R &5 2RI SB35k BR 4N - BB B
EREERFE35 (BFTA) BB

RUEBAXBER 2BEIMNES %
BEIBEE REGRAEK s —BE
EEREEMS  EXNARIBERE
AHBEBEEREER 2IZRARE
EIfr ¥4 HBEBEREER
FIREHRARIRF 25 BRI
HEMIS2HBEEE B NERS
ERWEBELES 2 - Bm
Rz BIEREBZ/AKRFTES
HEIFREUARBEEREE
B BB EEL 2 EE
FERAEPREME 2 E o R
REWARETHEEHAFSE
A o AN - ZFAERT R BE T E
FEGSIFEREINHERER
g3 Wal AEBEM QA FEES
EAE - AL ERZ —RV)EE
REERGEBREBRRN M  ~NE
B T _FTFTH—HE
BYRERMNZEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

—NE—A—BE-_F—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 September. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BRTBE

%?éﬁﬁﬁ#&ﬁaffﬂ%r&&ﬁﬁz$ AR
AT @ ERSE RS (F

BRAVEFENETEZRIA) -

RRGA BB RS LA B
FEAETEARH G FBEEE
BRI R AEE Y SR 2B
S8 o P RS A S B SR
B RYHANBREMEBEAY

2 BRRMEHRHESNEE -

RURERAMBRRSEANES
SHEHERATX

(a) #HREKRE

A BHRRBEAR T K EH
BRAABENA=THZMKR
R MBARIEAEERREZHI#E
ZRR EAREEARNZHELN
BERFFHAEOE - BAENE
BEEERNENZEZST IR
B AREEEGZER - EXE
ERREENAE TEZERR
BEREBOR) (BREFEER
@#&ﬁ]%ﬁk)ﬁi ARNEEERY
ZEROES-

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

4., BEESITHE (&)

(a)

EHRA R

mERE (&)

ERHEEHIRE AEEeEEHE
@Z:E? RRUREMBALTHED
BERRE -ERAAEERITE
BEREENBERLT  TE&ERH
%Tﬂ%ﬂf’

MEBARIDEEFEEBEAE
Bz g BREE AR WRESIE
RIFEBEFILEEZES AlKe

HEME AR (BEKEZGE)
ZRMNEERE(LEREZAF
BEMEHZMNBRARAKRTREZ
DA (i) AR R EE %M B QR
ZEEFEMEBEHEZMEB AR
ZAERF R E R AR RETINE
mEREEZER-

SERAEZRS HEHEARER
WS HE I - BRIFEEBRRBRR
HTAEBRERNEERRRE A
AEBREEITTALEE B LA

EHBREATEZREIEL
fERT > DARELR BN 6R [ P R4 2 B
R—2-

BRIV FRARRER
AR B 2 - R R ERE
SR E MBI K KA BIR
RS BB HMART 2SN - R
BotEHmaBaR REEGRER
Hirz2EBERAAREERF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

4., BEESITHEHE (&)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

4., BEESITHE (&)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

4., BEESITHEHE (&)
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(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

4., BEESITHE (&)

(c)
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(i) EERBUBHREXAZXER

(iii)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz 3R & i & @ B [R

/D\

IASNEE R 2 X B IR b6 B
ARRXIEAZEXRBKE
R EE - LAINEEEZ
EREENBEREHREN
RZERTABE - RIAE
BRAMEEZELBEBENE

AT AR B RN
FEMRERETATFEY
B2 EAEERHE -

=

HIFEHRBE ZBBNE
2EHBENER NZE
ZERE DN E 2
NER -HIFEHRBEZA
BERERAER MZAE
ZER NI RER -

3z
m

HEREFZHRE

e S - R B R R
BB TSI EREAEA
AL HEE

~  EHREBERRRAZE
ER A YRR
SRR A B 2 R lE
AR

i ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

95



e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EEGHEE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (c) IEBRE (&)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

= All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d)
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% - 33"/5%
12.5% - 33"/3%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%

5% - 20%

10%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

The Group as a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily car parking
spaces. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(f)

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are

acquired separately are carried at costs less

accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible

assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method

are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired

separately are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business

combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business

combination are recognised separately from

goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value

at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their

cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets

acquired in a business combination with finite

useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment

losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that

are acquired separately.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised when the contract includes
a significant financial component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
bond receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLSs”).

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operation

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or
disposal group’s previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

(n)

operation (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group

constituting the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out in (0) to (r) below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert
the bonds into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price,
are regarded as combined instruments consisting of a
liability and a derivative component. The entire convertible
bond is designated as a financial liability at FVTPL.

Transaction costs are charged directly to profit or loss.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the trading of copper and petrochemicals
and sale of liquefied natural gas in bulk are recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customer’s
specified location (delivery), and the agreed service
performed. Following delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the

passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as

set out by the government.
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E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Revenue recognition (Continueq)

The Group provides leasing of steel support axial force
servo system and related installation services and
technology support to customer. Leasing income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(e).
Installation services and technology support services
income are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of these services
provided by the Group as it performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year/period. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or
the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
trade and other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables. The amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

a financial instrument. In contrast,

result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (2)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,

financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability

to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

S significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

= an actual or expected significant adverse change

in the regulatory, economic, or technological

environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,

the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial

asset has increased significantly since initial recognition

when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

4., BEESITHE (&)

()

ERMEERE (&)

FERELHBEE

ERLEHIREENBIREKR
EREEETNNEZEN—HNE
HENZE ZeBEENHRE
BERE - eREEFRERENZE
BREATEFATBREUR:

- BOAIRZHEFRARE
B 75 TR &

- EREH - PIMENKEH
i

- XRSHFHERAHRER
5% F B 75 N BEAR R A0 S
HEHWRA MARHEHF
BTERARETEE RN

B

- XRZYUFAERERETHE
B IS & 3

- TRMEEMNGRERMSREAMS
PR EEMIE K

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

121



122

e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECLs is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECLs
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements (apart from those

involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon measures taken by the
Directors to improve the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and profitability and the financial support
from a major shareholder, at a level sufficient to
finance the working capital requirements of the
Group as explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation of entity with less than 50%
equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in EEMIZRXARTFAERA 7
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.)
(“Yichang Biaodian”), Yichang Biaodian is treated as
a subsidiary because the Group is able to control
the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian as a result
of the shareholders’ agreement among the Group
and other shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. The
assessment on the control is set out in note 26(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(d) Judgement of the Group’s trading
and petrochemicals as a principal

of copper

The Group recognises revenue generated from
trading of copper and petrochemicals on a gross

basis acting as a principal.

Significant judgement

is made by the management of the Group in
determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or agent in the Group’s copper and

petrochemicals trading business.

Considering that the Group controls the copper and
petrochemicals before they are transferred to the
customer as (i) the Group has primary responsibility

for fulfilling the promise to provid

e the copper

and petrochemicals including responsibility for the
acceptability of the copper and petrochemicals;

(i) the Group bears the inventory
the Group has discretion to establis

risk; and (iii)
h the price of

the copper and petrochemicals, management of
the Group has assessed that the Group acts as

principal.

The Group recognises revenue in the

gross amount

of consideration to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods transferred.
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—NWE—A—BEZ=-Z—NFENA=+HBHEHHE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continuead)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (ii)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned.

The Group assesses whether property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress have
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations
of each CGU the property, plant and equipment
belonged, which requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continuead)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (ii)

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property, plant

and equipment (Continued)

Impairment loss of HK$18,127,000 (year ended
31 December 2018: Nil) was recognised for the
period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
to write down the carrying amount of the property,

plant and equipment to the recoverable amount

of the CGUs belonged. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment as at 30 September
2019 was HK$242,422,000 (at 31 December 2018:

HK$277,688,000).

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in

several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are

required in determining the provision for income

taxes. There are many transactions and calculations

for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain

during the ordinary course of business. Where

the final tax outcome of these matters is different

from the amounts that were initially recorded,

such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made. During the period ended 30
September 2019, HK$4,981,000 (year ended 31
December 2018: HK$1,973,000) of income tax was
credited to profit or loss based on the estimated

assessable loss from continuing operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period
became nil (at 31 December 2018: HK$4,323,000)
after an impairment loss of HK$4,207,000 (year
ended 31 December 2018: HK$8,005,000) was
recognised during the period from 1 January 2019
to 30 September 2019. Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Amortisation and impairment on intangible

assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed by the management at least at the end of
each reporting period. The Group assesses whether
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
intangible assets have been determined based on
value in use calculations of each CGU the intangible
assets belonged which requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Impairment loss of HK$15,057,000 (year ended
31 December 2018: HK$4,500,000 included in
discontinued operation) was recognised for the
period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019. The carrying amount of intangible assets at
30 September 2019 was HK$178,685,000 (at 31
December 2018: HK$204,658,000).
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BE-Z—NF—A—HE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables based on the credit risk of trade
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 September 2019, the carrying amount
of trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$48,000, was HK$11,243,000 (at 31
December 2018: HK$2,871,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z—NF—A—HEZE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entities such as United States
dollars (“US$”) and HK$. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 30 September 2019, if RMB had weakened 10%
per cent against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the period
would have been HK$2,550,000 (at 31 December
2018: HK$508,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on non-convertible bonds,
convertible bond and bank balances denominated in
HK$, but partly offset by bonds receivables and loans
receivables denominated HK$. If RMB had strengthened
10% per cent against HK$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the period
would have been HK$2,550,000 (at 31 December
2018: HK$508,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds,
convertible bond and bank balances denominated in
HKS$, but partly offset by bonds receivables and loans
receivables denominated in HKS.

Bt %5 | B ' 12

AEEZEBTHEHEHZRSRAR:
SNERER EERR  RBE SRR R
GRS $EIZEL SR
SPRERMISZ AAEAME - X FK
BEREHAKEMBERAZEBETF

=z 48
rEC

(@) SRR

HRAREZHBOEBR S  BE
RBETNASEER ZIEER
ANz E% (T ([%£5T])
KB TTAHE - AEE B AT E S0
B2 5 BERBEHRIEMINE
ERER - AR BT EERINE
BRIt EREFTERE R TE
RZINE [z

RZFE—AFALA=ZF+H WAR
BB TTE TE10%  MEAMFT
ERHHFTE BIARBAREIE
4R & [E5 18 7] g2 18 h12,550,000/% 7T
(RZE—NFE+ZA=+—81:
508,000/ 7T) " It Ty E E BRI
BITEHE 2 TR ES - ATk
BEHF RIRITHEREEINEFE B
o OB TTEHE 2 FEUUE 5 R B
W E FETHEE o A R BT
AﬁhmwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmgﬁHT

RN BRI R & AR S B B ] BEIR
/25anm@%nﬂ RZZE-—NF
+=-HA=+—H :508,000&7T) °
I EZRRABITHEZ AT #
fRES - JRIRESRRITEHRE
HHME W R - BE D W ABTTEHE
ZEWES REWERETHEE-

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



wm

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

8=

BA IR AR

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 30 September 2019, if RMB had weakened 10%
per cent against the US$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the period would
have been HK$460,000 (at 31 December 2018: Nil)
higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
loss on non-convertible bonds denominated in US$. If
RMB had strengthened 10% per cent against US$ with
all other variables held constant, consolidated loss after
tax for the period would have been HK$460,000 (at 31
December 2018: Nil) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds
denominated in HKS.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low

credit risk.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

6.

MERRERE #)

(a)

(b)
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S Eb ()
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18 A R8I 460,000 70 (R = F
—NE+_A=+—8:FT) it
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FERR

EERRTIERYFAFRREE
TEREMIAXNTEFAEHNET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 to 6 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. KRARER &)

(b) FERR (&)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAhF—A—HEZE-ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBERER 2

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRKR(£Z)
(i)  Trade receivables (Continued) () EKREZRZ (E)
The following table provides information about the TERIIR=ZZ—NFNA
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade —t+HASEEEEERR
receivables as at 30 September 2019: ZERKEWE SRR TE
HEEEE:

30 September 2019 —E-AFHAA=1+H
Current (not past due) BUER (R E])

1 — 30 days past due #1891 - 308

31 - 60 days past due #8931 - 60H

61 — 90 days past due #8961 — 90H

91 — 180 days past due #8991 — 180H

More than 180 days past due #1 85 B180H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

6. KRARER &)

(b) FERR (&)

(i)  Trade receivables (Continued) () EREZHERZ(Z)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIE B X REBE BB E
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FAT FHET

31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+=A=+—8H

Current (not past due) BVER (K@ E) = = -
1 - 30 days past due #HI1-30H - 2,718 -
31 - 60 days past due #1 #931-60H - 1 =
61 — 90 days past due 7 #961-90 H - 4 =
More than 90 days past due 31 8ii @90 H 2.25% 148 -
2,871 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MHKEABRERE &)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EERRK(£)

(i)  Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EREZER(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect HINERE SRR 2SR
of trade receivables during the period is as follows: BEFHIMT:

2019

—E-N1F

HK$'000

FHE T

At 1 January ®n—H—H -
Impairment losses recognised AR RERERSE

for the period 50

Exchange differences ME 5, = R (@)

At 30 September BRNALA=+H 48

(i)  Bonds, loans and other receivables (i) EF BEFREMENRZE

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Bonds, loans and other
receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
bonds, loans and other receivables and other assets
is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &
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RIFZEH ETRSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
BE-E—NF—A—HBHEZ—NAFNA=1+HHEME For the period from 1

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Bond, loans and other receivables (Continued)

The loss allowance account in respect of bond,
loan and other receivables during the period is as

nts
January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BEREER &)
(b) EERBK (&)

(i) EF BFRAMERNE
(%)

HIRE S B R MR
REZBRBEEROT

follows:

Loan Bond
receivables receivables
ERER FE W fE A
HK$’'000 HK$’000
T FET
At 1 January 2019 R_ZE—-hF—H—H S -

Impairment losses recognised HA A & 32 HY J8i (B /&5 18
for the period 7,138 177
Exchange differences P N E%8 (135) -
At 30 September 2019 RZZE-NAFNA="TH 7,003 177

The management of the Group assessed the risk of
default based on both quantitative and qualitative
information on hand after initial recognition. Based
on their assessment, there was a significant
increase in the loss allowance in loan receivables
because of the increase in default risk that certain
loan receivables have been overdue since maturity
as they have financial difficulty to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAhF—A—HEZE-ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBERER 2

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBEEEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBZBRATHERERAR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it FEHRBEST R UREBHIFRT
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity EReREENEEBARRR
requirements in the short and longer term. ZREBEEEZE K-
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted REBSRHABGERESORMIE
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: REeEREFEZEBAI>MOT

At 30 September 2019 RZZE-NAERA=1H

Trade and other payables BHREMERNTKIE

Lease liabilities HESE

Due to a director ERN—REZRE

Due to a related company B —HIBH A R R

Non-convertible bonds TABRES

Due to non-controling JEAT— R B 2RI R AR R R
shareholders of a subsidiary HEBER 258
and its related parties

Bank borrowings RITER

Convertible bond designated REARATEFABRELZ
at FVTPL R ES

' GLOBAL STRATEGIC UP LIMITED B BB EEMAIRAT  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 % #§ 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z—NF—A—HEZE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

n‘/T\

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MKEARERE &)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) wBELRAR (Z)
Total
Less than Between Between Over  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
REEB
PRE 1-26 2-5% 5L BENEsNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT FEL FEL THEL T
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1+-H
Trade and other payables B REMERZE 44,922 - - = 44,922
Due to a director ER—2EEHE 2,105 - - 2,105
Non-convertible bonds TARRESR 11,347 3,360 - = 14,707
Due to non-controlling JER —RM B A RFEERRR &
shareholders of a subsidiary HEEH 2508
and its related parties 39,650 - - - 39,650
Bank borrowings RITHER 3,812 3,192 14,262 - 21,266
Convertible bond designated REBRATEFAER
at FVTPL AARES 2,000 20,861 - - 22,861
103,836 27,413 14,262 - 145,511
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=m= B
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEBzReRENERRBEE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest

rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the

Group’s borrowing denominated in RMB.

Other than bank borrowing mentioned above, the Group’s

loan and bond receivables, non-convertible bonds and

other borrowing bear interest at fixed interest rate and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest

rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity

analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z—NF—A—HE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MKERERE &)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at (e) RT3 AHzeMIASE
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—h%F RZE—NF
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Financial assets: EWMEE:
Financial assets measured LKA ECSRMEE
at amortised cost 38,812 49,557
Financial liabilities: A =R
Financial liabilities BREBHEKTIEREZeMAE
at amortised cost 148,002 118,782
Convertible bond designated EEREATEFTAEBRZ
at FVTPL AR E 55 19,771 24,186
(f)  Fair values f) 2DFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets FREVBERRAKRIRE 2 RN EE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated tREENCRBECRAER
statement of financial position approximate their TREESBZAFE.

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWE—A—BE=-Z—NFENA=+HHEHME For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

8=

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AV EHE

RFHERTHE2EERTERNET L
BFRXHTFHEEEMBBREZRAE
Pz BR - U TR FEAERER
AZRAFEESR #HEAFEZMEE
B R ABES R =EFMR:

F-RBARE: AKERFEAHIREA
REEXABNERDS
ZHE (REHE) -

“BEANE: AERAEUERANER
B2EANE -85
H2 BERIN -

F-RBARE: BERREIATBEEGA
BiE-

AEBZBRAEEREZNREHESAMR
''''''' FEERZER BRI ZE AR
ZEEARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(a)

(b)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

NFEFTE (&)
(a) AVFEEBRRE:

Fair value measurements
using level 3

ERE=MzAFETE

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

R-E-I%F R-ZZB—/\F
hA=+H +ZA=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Recurring fair value BEMAFETE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Convertible bond designated EEREBEATEFTAEBRZ
at FVTPL TR ES 19,771 24,186

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value

based on level 3:

(b) BEE=-"ERRLTVEFEZE
BHR:

Convertible bond designated

at FVTPL
EEREBEAFEFAEZZ
R E S
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

R=B-—n%E AT )F
AA=+A | +-A=t+-~

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

At beginning of period/year HR ) 24,186 =
At date of issuance of RA R & %17 A

convertible bond - 20,000

Total (gains) or losses recognised NIEZFER 2

in profit or loss* (Yam) BB aE (3,940) 4,186

Exchange differences MEH =5 (475) -

At end of period/year RE R 19,771 24,186

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss at end

of reporting period are presented in the face (31 December

2018: face) of the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

# REEB RN BRERH KK
BRAENEABE REMBR
BRPEREERZY (R-F—-N
F+_A=+t—HB:ZHESR
Fl]) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 30 September 2019:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial liabilities are determined, in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and input used.

Level 3 fair value measurements

Unobservable

7.

NFETE (&)

(c)

R-ZB-AFAA=+H F&E
ERZEERFRARQFERT
EBvERMTREABEBRE:

AEBEMBRERBEVBRSEN
FTEENRBBEZAFENE B#E
FZE/AFEFE -WHREER
BEREEGERZEAFENE-
MBRERESEEFEIRM
BEREFMERBITMAREGE

IR =ZERATFEFEMS A%
ERARERFABERAYZER
BRI HMERZIBHEEER
EITHE TRENZEN A
EEZEERAEIAFE"
LHER ERZAERMREA
Bz o

E=ZFRAFENE

Effect on fair value

Description Valuation technique inputs Range for increase of inputs Fair value of liabilities
BARBEM
i fh B i TTBEBARE #E HATENTE ATE
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=B-1& R-T-N\F
R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR
Convertible bond designated  Trinomial Option Pricing Model Stock price volatility 39.47% Increase 19,771 24,186
at FVTPL (at 31 December 2018:
Binomial Option Pricing Model)
EEARATE By ZBEABETEER KER R Em
MR ES (R=B-\FE+ZR=1+—8H:
“EABREERR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

8. REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service line for the period/year from

continuing operations is as follows:

8. Wi
U 35 8 5
B,/ F R
R%

Period from

¥z FEEmMSL
SHRERBEFPER2WARE S A
T

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B-Z—-hF H=
—A—HBZ%& —E-NF
—E—hFE +-A=+—H
hB=+HHMHE HFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Revenue from contracts with EBM KRG ERE155
customers within the scope of EERAREEFE
HKFRS 15 R S
Disaggregated by major products or R T B E Rk REZE D
service lines
— Sales of goods —EEE®m 295,070 64,529
— Sales of natural gas —HEXAR 29,833 40,342
— Rendering of services — R AR 2,353 2,800
327,256 107,671
Revenue from other sources Hib Rz W=
- Leasing income -l A 3,739 1,045
330,995 108,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAF—A—HEZE-_ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

8.

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time in the following major
product lines and geographical regions:

8.

Trading of Sales of
Trading of copper petrochemicals natural gas
REA RHALER BEXRR

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2018 2018
K #z #z
—2-)\& —Z2-)\& —2-)\5
t-A=+-B T-A=+-H t-A=+-H
I3 5R I3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn FiEn
Primary geographical TEHETH
markets
- The PRC except —E (TaEEE)
Hong Kong 64,529 - 40,342
Revenue from external RENDER 2z
customers 64,529 - 40,342
—
Timing of revenue [i6:3: =45
recognition
Products transferred at a point  1E5 &%
in time HBYZER 64,529 = 4,826
Products and services RBERESZ
transferred over time ERRRE - - 35,516
Total it 64,529 - 40,342
—

Y& (4

W gl (&)

REBUWLAT = B E iR Mot (B BE R
R OBy ] B S 7 o S AR TS JE 1S et

Pipeline
installation services

EERERY

Year ended
31 December
2018

£
—2-)\5
+-A=+-B
I3
HK$'000
FiEn

Provision of technology
support services

RERAZERE

Year ended
31 December
2018

£
—2-0\%
+-A=+-8
flZ3:4
HK$'000
FiEn

1,805

995

1,805 995
1,805 -

- 995
1,805 995

Total
i

Year ended
31 December
2018

£
—2-0\%
+ZA=+-B
fIZ3:4
HK$'000
FiEn

107,671

107,671

71,160

36,611

107,671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

Note: Government grant mainly comprised reward for the Group’s

construction of natural gas station located in the PRC.

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftWA
Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z2-h%F
—HA—HBZ% BE_T—N\&F
—E2-hAE +ZA=+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
Continuing operations BFEREXEK
Bank interest income HRITHAE WA 3 4
Interest income from bond receivables & &% 2 F B U A 863 457
Interest income from loan to third REETFE=ZFERZ
parties A BHA 1,429 606
Net exchange gain PE 5 W am 558 4,005 -
Government grant (note) AT A0 (PBFE) - 1,166
Others Hit 281 8
6,581 2,241

izt BAWMIZSEEAEERZEMN
B Y R A SRk B B
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10. OTHER LOSSES

11.

—NE—A—BE-_F—

HibE 18

Period from

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=%-N#%F
—A-HE ®E-T-N\F
—E—-hh& +=-A=+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Continuing operations BFEREXEK
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMZEEE
plant and equipment - (100)
Loss on de-registration of subsidiaries & 7 #4452 &8 (94) (48)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets i B # & 7 7 F{E K18 (117) -
(211) (148)
SEGMENT INFORMATION DEER
The Group has four (year ended 31 December 2018: three) AEEZzNELEIHB(BHE_T—N
operating segments as follows: FHT_A=+—HLEHFE: ZE) 0T :
Trading of including income from trading of B & il - PRERNEBESZ
copper copper PN
Trading of including income from trading of BEEALER — BEALERES
petrochemicals petrochemical Z WA
Natural gas including investment in natural gas RKAREE — BEELREXAAR
operations projects, sales of natural gas, HE HEXRA
natural gas cooking appliance and FoRARKA
accessories and pipeline installation REEHAREE
T
Leasing business —  including services rendered from HEXEB - BERAENTE
leasing of steel support axial force HAHRRERR
servo system and technology Rt iERH
support Pk 7

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. 2 ER (&)

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include amounts
for discontinued operations, unallocated corporate expenses,
certain other income, finance cost and income tax. Segment
assets do not include assets of discontinued operations or held
for sales, bank and cash balances and unallocated assets.
Segment liabilities do not include liabilities of discontinued
operations, convertible bond designated at FVTPL, non-
convertible bonds, some other borrowings and unallocated
liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not include deposits
for acquisitions.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current
market prices.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

REBEZAIRED B RREEIFER R
R REEEFEL - AR EEBT
BARZ MRS EERE W&

BB -

REDBZ EFRRERA M BHRERM
FEARTEIA E AR o 0 &R A B R A
BREORIEREEB 2R KAokE
ERX BT EAMKRA BB A KR
BH- IHWEELTERCRILELER
BEFELENEE RITRBESEH
RADEEE - DHARLIEREEK
EREXRBRE EERAFEFAR
mZABRRES TABRKRES BT
HEERADERE -DEHIERDE
EXYTERKBERZESE -

AEEGDBEEEREEER BN
ZEHESIERNE =T (IRERT
B)EL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAF—A—HEZE-_ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2HEHR (#)

FRRERRACERXRE 2 RETH
BARER BERBBEZER:

(@) Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a)
assets and liabilities from continuing operations:

Period from 1 January 2019 BH=Z-h&-fF-HZ

to 30 September 2019 “Z-NFERB=1H
T

Revenue from external RENDEP 2 s
customers

Segment (loss)/profit A (BB),/EF

Interest revenue F 2z

Interest expense Fem%

Depreciation and amortisation 7 % J 44

Net foreign exchange gain [l enyal

Income tax (expense)/credit  FTEH (Hx) /B4

Other material non-cash items: HtEAFELER

Impairment loss on goodwill ~ FEFERE

Impairment loss on property,  #1% BE K
plant and equipment FEREEE

Impairment loss on intangible &/ & & A (B F51E
assets

Allowance for loan receivables Y & 5 & f

Allowance for trade receivables [EUTE 58 7 & &

Additions to segment non- REDWIERIEE
current assets

As at 30 September 2019  R-ZE-AENA=1H

Segment assets NEEE

Segment liabilities PHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

(a)

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 11. 2 EER (2)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) ERAREBELCEER2LEST
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: EANREE BEEREBBEZER:
(Continued) (&)
Trading of Trading of Natural gas Leasing
copper  petrochemicals operations business Total
BEWN BEALER RRRER HEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T THL FET FAL
Year ended 31 December HZ-Z-\f
2018 +-A=t-HLEEE
Revenue from external RENDEP 2 Wz
customers 64,529 - 42,147 2,040 108,716
Segment (loss)/profit PH(EE)/HH (2,131) - (38,307) 1,775 (38,663)
Interest revenue F 2z 1 - 1 1 3
Interest expense FERX - - (19,483) = (19,483)
Depreciation and amortisation 478 [ i 4 97) - (19,707) (60) (19,864)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEEE (55) - - = (59)
Net foreign exchange loss MNEEBFHE (23) - - = (23)
Income tax credit FEHES - - 1,973 - 1,973
Additions to segment non- RENBIERDEE
current assets 1,963 - 14,898 7,187 24,048
As at 31 December 2018 RZEB-NF
+=A=+-~H
Segment assets NEEE 5,451 - 480,842 12,268 498,561
Segment liabilities PHAE (6,991) - (146,116) (24) (153,131)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. 2 EE R (&)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) FELKEXBzIHBUEFEER
loss from continuing operations: HER:

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z2-h%F
—B-HE ®E-T-\F
—EZ—h& +=-A=+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Revenue g
Consolidated revenue from RELEEB 2 iFENE
continuing operations 330,995 108,716
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable 7] g 25 75 264 F| sk E5 18 42 58
segments (54,255) (38,663)
Unallocated amounts: RO EHE:
General and administrative — M RATHZ H
expenses (16,031) (36,791)
Impairment loss on intangible B EAEREEE
assets (770) -
Allowance for loan receivables — EUL & ZEE (4,115) =
Allowance for bond receivables [ W (& %5 5 (177) =
Finance costs B 75 A AR (3,587) (6,214)
Other income HAa U A 6,352 1,063
Other losses Hfth &5 18 = (93)
Fair value change of BEEAFEFAER
convertible bond AmRESATFEE
designated at FVTPL 3,940 (4,186)
Consolidated loss before tax R E TS 2 RELRT
from continuing operations REEE (68,643) (84,884)
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—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or

loss from continuing operations: (Continued)

11. 7

HERE (2

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

(b) REMEAEHE I > 5 Uk 58 3

HR: (&)

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z-h%F
—A—HB=ZE HE_Z—N\F
=E-hAEFE +-HA=t+—H
hWA=+HEH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Reconciliations of PTHEERSBYHER:
segment assets and
liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable ASRENHBEE
segments 453,260 498,561
Assets relating to discontinued HARBERIEKEEEKZEE
operations - 133
Assets held for sales BIEHEEE 2,721 =
Unallocated RAEC 39,340 55,223
Consolidated total assets IREREE 495,321 553,917
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable AMmEDHBEE
segments 153,874 153,131
Liabilities relating to discontinued EEERILELXK 2 AE
operations - 75
Unallocated RAEC 63,664 43,296
Consolidated total liabilities mamai 217,538 196,502
Geographical information HwEE K

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by
location of customers or by location of assets are within
the PRC, including Hong Kong.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&i@iﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁ&fm%
DRZAEBBERENIEREE
EAMRTR  BiEEE-

EHRA R

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

153



154

e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is

11.

DEEFR (&)
(c) REFTEEFEFZWE:

REEFBRFEZWZE (EREE W
#=10% A E) 25T T -

as follows:
Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z-h%F
—RA—HB=ZE HE_Z—N\F
—®-hL% +-A=t-H
AA=+HBME LFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Customer A BFA 177,251 =
Customer B =2FEB 55,312 39,704
Customer C EPFC 10,877 24,542
Customer D ®FD 8,801 10,815

Each of the major customers represents a single external
customer whose transaction is generated from trading
of petrochemicals and copper segment (year ended 31
December 2018: solely trading of copper segment).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

EXTEEFRARSELBES
ALERMASE (BE-ZT—N
FT-_A=t—HILLFE: EEER
WORME SRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B B A
Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z2-h%F
—HA—HBZ% BE_T—N\&F
—E2-hAE +ZA=+—H
hA=+HEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
Continuing operations BFEREXEK
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF R 1,176 1,757
Imputed interest on loan from —BRIRERH
a former shareholder BEREERNE - 4,811
Imputed interest on loan from IR R EREES
non-controlling shareholders R ZERGHERE
and its related parties 3,421 31,893
Interest on convertible bond BEZAFEFAEBRZ
designated at FVTPL wmRESZFE 1,497 1,156
Interest on non-convertible bonds PRI BMREFZFE 1,881 247
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZNE 228 =
8,203 39,864
Less: amounts capitalised in B ERIRFPER LS5
construction in progress - (14,167)
8,203 25,697

The weighted average capitalisation rate was 9.75% for the

year ended 31 December 2018.

BE-_Z— )/ \F+-_A=+—HILEE

ZINEFHE R EEIT5% °

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz 3R & i & @ B [R

/D\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T-NF—A—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT

13.

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been

recognised in profit or loss as following:

FiEHE %

ERESTRAZBERFALLERH 2
FrEmimT:

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

B=Z2-h%F
—RA—HB=ZE HE_Z—N\F
—®-AE +-A=t+-8
AA=+HBME LEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR

Current tax — PRC RVEAR I8 — P

Provision for the year REERME 19 =
Deferred tax (note 41) EIETL IR (PEE41) (5,000) (1,973)
(4,981) (1,973)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,

Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the

Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”")
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of

the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (year ended 31 December 2018:

25%). The tax rate of Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of Hong
Kong subsidiaries is 16.5% (year ended 31 December 2018:

16.5%).

RERESHS BEIRRBELEHS

(RBREXEE )R RER  A&H

Nz E & B AR ERAEHR-

RIEFBECEAEN ([DEMEH])
ERTEMGBUEERAR - b BB

NAINRER25% (BE-_T—\F

T_A=1—HLEFE:25%) E@E
BB RRNEENSHYER16.5%

(B2 —N&E+=-_A=+—HILHF

fE:16.5%) °

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the

Group has no assessable profit for the period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019 (year ended 31 December 2018:

Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

HRAEBE T NF—A—RE_

T—NFENA =1 B LI E RS
MBE—ZE—N\F+_A=+—8Lt

FEE) BHBAFLEENEGHE
e
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

13. FIBHIER (&)

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the

product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as

follows:

Period from

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

FIEHE e BERHAEBRRATEEE
PRI E 2B ZHERMT

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—-h%F
—HA—H BE_T—N\H&F
Z2-F—hFE +-HA=+—H
hBE=+HHHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax BB R E 1R (68,643) (84,884)
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate of 25% thP B> TS T X 25%
(2018: 25%) E—N\F:25%)2
I % (17,161) (21,221)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TR H 2R E
deductible 8,008 3,218
Tax effect of income not taxable RRBA B FEHE (1,333) (71)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary KR IBEE X
differences not recognised ERUEEZEE MBS 4,433 13,018
Utilisation of tax losses not previously &) F %t Al ok FE 52 2 T 78 /&5 18
recognised (19) -
Tax effort of tax concession BHBEEZHBEE (75) =
Effect of different tax rates of REAMEEREE L LK B A A
subsidiaries operating in other TR Rz E
jurisdictions 1,166 3,083
Income tax credit for the period/year 8,/ F Rz FBHIEE (4,981) (1,973)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

14. LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

14. FERKEXK2H FABE

AEBEBBEEEER 2 FABET
Bk (GTA) A TR EESIR

The Group’s loss for the period/year from continuing operations
is stated after charging/(crediting) the followings:

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—-h%F
—A—HZ% BE_T—N\H&F
—E2—h& +=-A=+—H
WA=+ HEHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E
(included in selling and (FTASHE KD A)
distribution cost) 5,711 7,892
Amortisation of prepaid lease AN HEERIEEHE
payments - 39
Other receivables written off A W 3R TE 8 8 10 =
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 256 F7
— Audit service —BZRB
— Current — BN R 1,100 1,080
— Under-provision in prior year - BAFERETR 115 -
— Other services — H fth AR 75 282 -
1,497 1,080
Cost of inventories sold BEGFERE 317,251 102,329
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREETE
equipment 13,530 13,490
Depreciation of right-of-use TRAEEERE
assets (included in general and (FFA—MEITHZH)
administrative expenses) 2,074 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMXEEE
plant and equipment - 100
Impairment loss on goodwill mEREEE
(included in general and (FFA—MEITH X )
administrative expenses) 4,207 8,005
Net exchange gain R ey (4,005) (330)
Operating lease charges KEHEE R 10 1,915

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

15. EEEABEX

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE=-Z—h#fF
—A—B=% HE-_ZT—N\F
—E-hFEhA +=-—A=+—H
=+ HHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FAT
Employee benefits expense (including EEEFHEYZ (BFEEEHH) ¢
directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TE4 K ERL 5,895 6,065
Equity-settled share option expense  ABGAE 4 E R BB AT HE R X - 7,804
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTEF T B3R
contributions 330 286
6,225 14,155

None of the Directors (year ended 31 December 2018: three)
included in the five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the period whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 16(a). The emoluments of the five (year
ended 31 December 2018: two) individuals during the period/
year are as follows:

HRAEBRAE G FIMALTRESS
(22— N\F+A=+—H1tHF
E:=R)EF EMeRHE16(@27
ZOMPRB-B " FRAR(BEZ
T-NF+_AZ+—HLEFE:WA)
ALTzBemT:

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

BE-Z—h#f
—A—HBZ& Hz—_ZT—N\&F
—ZE—-h& +=-ZHA=+—H
hWB=+HHAE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e AR EYET

benefits in kind 1,260 353
Equity-settled share option expenses VA& #E 4% & ¢ BE AR #E 5 52 - 1,564
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & ¥k 18 Fl 5t 21 f#t 7 50 16
1,310 1,933
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued) 15. EERABBEXZ (&)

Number of individuals

AB

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZE—h&E
—HA—HBZ% HEz_ZT—N\F
—E2-hF +ZHA=+—H
A=+ HEH IEFE
The emoluments fell within FHCRATERE:
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 5 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8 T &
1,500,000/ 7T - 1
During the period, no amount was paid or payable by the HN AEETYESNHENKETT
Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals NEHEERAZERHTHATRHE
set out below as an inducement to join or upon joining the fAl—F AT fERRSIEE AN
Group or as compensation for loss of office. AREER 8RB SEABRE 2@
&o
During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain non- BE-Z-N\F+ZA=1+T—HLHF
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees were B ATHESRIEERTHRAENEK
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group SHHEBRERNARBRERS 5
under the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the 1% % 1A 7N £ B 42 1 A9 AR 765 if 22 9% B8 AR
share option scheme are set out in note 44 to the Group’s BRI FBIENAEEBGZE N
consolidated financial statements. TR T 5244 o

160 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



e MR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAhF—A—HEZE-ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 16. EE R/ K FH
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EZEE=MS
The remuneration of each director is set out below: FEEEZ2HEeHINWT

Name of director g2

Executive directors TES
Mr. Long Wenming (note (a)) XA %4 (Hizk(a))
Mr. Chen Hualiang (note (b)) RER %4 (M (b))
Mr. Han Leiping (note (c) &P 4L (MHiE()
Mr. Wu Guoming RERHEE
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting RmE LA

Independent non-executive B HTEE
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin -~ 23L&
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee (note () BE 2 &+ (i)

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BREBLAE
Ms. Huang Yu Jun HEREELL
Total Har

LIMITED BH BB EMARAT  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-E—NF—A—HBHE_ZF—NAFNLA=Z+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuead)

16. EECR/AIRNE (&)

ExMeE (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-\F+-_A=1+—ALHFE

Retirement
Salaries  Equity-settled benefits Total
and other share option scheme directors’
Fees benefits expense contributions emoluments
AR
Hek HEH RIKER
e Hi g 7w BRERT FEMR  EZMesE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ERiN THT FAT FET TET FAT
Executive directors HE
Mr. Long Wenming (note (a)) HEKEH%’E (M5 (@) - 118 952 - 1,070
Mr. Chen Hualiang (note (b)) FRZER %4 (MiFE(b)) - 118 952 - 1,070
Mr. Han Leiping (note (c)) BEFLAE (M) - 118 952 - 1,070
Mr. Wei Yuetong (note (e)) 2R AZE %4 (i) - 125 = = 125
Mr. Wu Guoming (note () ~ REIRF %4 (M) - 80 791 4 875
Mr. Weng Lin Lei PERLE([SEE])
(*Mr. Weng”) (note (g)) (M) - 42 = = 42
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting Rim 4 - 200 - 10 210
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin - 230584 120 - - - 120
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BRIt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEERE 120 = = = 120
Ms. Huang Yu Jun EXE0L 120 - - - 120
Total st 480 801 3,647 14 4,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuead)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Mr. Long Wenming was appointed on 8 January 2018 and
resigned on 27 September 2019.

Mr. Chen Hualiang was appointed on 8 January 2018 and
retired on 21 June 2019.

Mr. Han Leiping was appointed on 8 January 2018 and
resigned on 20 September 2019.

Ms. Kwan Siu Yee was retired on 21 June 2019.

Mr. Wei Yuetong was re-appointed on 5 February 2018
and resigned on 6 June 2018.

Mr. Wu Guoming was appointed on 30 April 2018.

Mr. Weng Lin Lei was resigned on 19 April 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor any of
the directors waived any emoluments during the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019 (year ended 31 December
2018: Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz 3R & i & @ B [R
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16.

17.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

—NE—A—BE-_F—

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuead)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the period/year or at any time
during the period/year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019,
retirement benefits scheme contributions paid amounted to
approximately HK$330,000 (year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$286,000).

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

16. EECR/AIRNE (&)

(b) EZERXZ ZHEIRESNTERZ
EXER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 8. CARIEREXE
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group RBE-Z-—N\F+_A=+—HIEF

ceased its business in provision of IT solution services due to
deterioration of operating results and financial performance
over the year of 2018. The analysis of the results of
discontinued operations is as follows:

B -AaRE—_T-N\FREEAMKE
RITRMBEH 2 EERBE R BRI
FEBI MAREEREZER-B
RIEBEXBZEZEINAOT

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZE—h&E
—A—HB=ZE HE-_Z—N\F
—E-NE +ZA=1+—H
WA=+ HEHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the period/year from ERIECEER
discontinued operations: FAREHIE:
Revenue W - 21
Cost of sales S B AR = (55)
Gross loss 5 = (34)
Other gains and losses Hfh e REE = (324)
Selling and distribution costs HE R KA = (5,129
General and administrative expenses —#& M 1T 7 - (33)
Loss for the period/year from ERIECEERZE,/
discontinued operations (attributable & A & 18
to owners of the Company) (AR AEE AEMN) - (5,520)
Loss for the period/year from ERIECEER
discontinued operations include FABBRBENATEIE:
the following:
Depreciation e - 29
Amortisation of intangible assets EmREEEH - 600
Impairment loss on intangible assets  EEE 2 BEE B
(note 25(b)) (M #E25(b) ) - 4,500
Loss on write-off of property, MW BE M&RE 2B
plant and equipment - 324
Cash flows from discontinued ERIEREEBZRERE
operations:
Net cash outflows from operating ERIEEEEL 2
activities e ML FRE - (85)
Net cash outflows Remt F5E = (85)
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB MEEAR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z—NF—A—HEZE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

w/T\

19. DIVIDENDS 19. R E
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend EETEEMRET—NEF—H—RB=E
for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 ZE-NFNA=+BBREIRMNERR
(year ended 31 December 2018: Nil). B(HEZZ—N\F+ZHA=+—81Lt
FEE) o
20. LOSS PER SHARE 20. ZREE

BREARBEEBEBEDRBEATSER
&

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:

i}

Period from

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE=-Z—-h%F
—A—HZ% HE-_ZT—N\F
—E2—h& +=-A=+—H
hB=+HHH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss from continuing and BERCRIEREEK ZER
discontinued operations
Loss for the purpose of calculating A ERHERE R ILEEER
basic earnings per share from L BREXRRBNMmE 2 EE
continuing and discontinued
operations (31,585) (70,595)
Effect of fair value change on EERATEFAERZ
convertible bond designated at wmRES A TE
FVTPL PN E (3,940) 4,186
Effect of interest on convertible bond 8 E R A FEFAEBREZ
designated at FVTPL BmRELRFEZFE 1,497 1,156
Loss for the purpose of calculating A ERERE R IEEER
diluted earnings per share from ZBREBERANMmE 2 EE
continuing and discontinued
operations (34,028) (65,253)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

20. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

20. B EE (#)

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z2-h%F
—HA—HBZ% BE_T—N\&F
—E—-hh& +=-A=+—H
hA=+HEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Loss from continuing operations FELKE XK 2ER
Loss for the purpose of calculating M ERECEEBL2BR
basic earnings per share from AEREFME 2 EE
continuing operations (31,585) (65,075)
Effect of fair value change on BEZAFEFAEBRZ
convertible bond designated at AR ESQFE
FVTPL 2T (3,940) 4,186
Effect of interest on convertible bond 8 E R A FEFAEBREZ
designated at FVTPL BmRELRFEZFE 1,497 1,156
Loss for the purpose of calculating M ERELCEEB 2R
diluted earnings per share from HERNmE BB
continuing operations (34,028) (59,733)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EBE R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i
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20. LOSS PER SHARE (continuead)

—NE—A—BE-_F—

20. B EE (#)

Period from

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZE—h&F
—HA—HBZ% HE-_ZT—N\F
—ZE2—h&E +-A=+—H
WA=+ HHHE IEFE
’000 ‘000
Number of shares [ &vig S §E| T B T
Weighted average number of ordinary FiEtEEREARAEFME 2
shares for the purpose of calculating & 38 % Hn#E 7 15 £
basic earnings per share 1,303,440 1,198,986
Effect of deemed conversion of RIEE s iR A AR A
convertible bond designated at BacBREFIEE
FVTPL 37,037 37,037
Weighted average number of ordinary BLEtEEREEFRFM S <
shares for the purpose of calculating & 8 I% Jn4E SF 19 £¢
diluted earnings per share 1,340,477 1,236,023
The computation of diluted loss per share for the period from B2 F—A—HE2ZZE—NFh

1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options, as this
would result in the decrease in the loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and conversion of
convertible bond, as this would result in the decrease in the
loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued
operations for year ended 31 December 2018 was 0.46 HK
cents per share, based on the loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 from discontinued operations attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately HK$5,520,000
and the denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share in 2018.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

H7+E%ﬁ2Ak%€EEH§mT
BREITERRR M ARITHEERE REA
AHBERGRERRD -

BE_ZT-N\FT_A=+—HLHFE
ZEREEERFELTERRITEAR
Bl Z W AR AT R R R R Al R A
F REAREGEHERERRD -

BERNARHERE ARG RIEEEER
ZEE-ZT-N\F+A=+—HItF
[E &5 18 495,520,000/ 7T R FT A0 5 &
BEYHFR - E-NEERERLHE
SHEEMAR BERIEKEEBHE-ZT
—NF+_A=+—BLEFEZEEE
RREEERRER0.467E L -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥ -BERRKRE

Computer Furniture Plant
system and and Leasehold Motor  Pipeline and and  Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures improvements vehicles equipment machinery in progress Total
ERARR
[ £ #F  GRERRE BERE RE  EEREE BERKE EBIR L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThL TERL Thx TEL Tax TEL ThL TEL
(note (a)) (note (b))
(W) (H5(0))
Cost [
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\-A-H 9,743 1,085 1,388 1,333 7,210 214,471 - 58,708 293,968
Additions RE S 8 43 25 1,965 390 7,187 14,491 24,099
Transfers g3 395 = = = = 70,851 S (71,246) =
Disposal He - - S S (1816) S S S (1816)
Written off i s (558) (o) (37) s s 5 5 (619)
Exchange differences ELEE (496) (30) (66) (68) 9 (10913) 10 (1,983) (13,507)
At 31 December 2018and ~ HZE—-N\F
1 January 2019 +zR=t-Ak
—5-hE-R-H 9,642 475 1,341 1,263 7,418 274,199 7,197 = 302,125
Additions AE o 170 133 1,056 o 3,528 40 885 6,182
Reclassified as held for sale ~ E 5B AR{EHE
(note 32) (Hiz32) (2.904) = 5 (102 (5,900) 5 5 5 (8,906)
Exchange differences EXEE (259) (1) (36) (33) (15) (7,541) (212) (39) (8,136)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-AENA=TA 6,479 644 1,438 2,174 1,503 270,786 7,395 846 291,265
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3ti7E
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\&-f-A 735 446 42 69 4,391 6,724 - - 12,777
Charge for the year FRER 372 133 282 264 1354 11,025 60 S 13490
Eliminated on disposals R ERE S - - - - (585) - - S (585)
Written off it S (19) (16) (25) = S 5 5 (236)
Exchange differences ELEE (55) (18) (30) (17) 13 (902) s s (1,009)
At 31 December 2018and ~ R=E—N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+-Rk
—5-nE-R-H 1,062 366 648 291 5,173 16,847 60 - 24,437
Charge for the period BARR 264 83 207 350 1,044 10,995 587 - 13,530
Impairment for the period BRI {E (B (D))
(note (o) 5 = 5 5 5 18,127 5 5 18,107
Reclassified as held for sale ~ EFA B AR{ELE
(note 32) GED) (600) = 5 78) (5,507) 5 5 5 (6,185)
Exchange differences EXEE (“0) = 26) (16) (14) (042) 28) S (1,066)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-AEAA=TR 676 449 829 547 696 45,027 619 - 48,843
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NFAA=TH 5,803 195 609 1627 807 225,759 6,776 846 242,422
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=+-8 8,590 109 693 962 2,245 257,952 7137 - 277,688
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under medium (a) AEBZEFHEFRBEARBBORE
term leases. B
(b)  The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the CGU of b) AEEHEELRZERBEREERA

Yichang Biaodian. Details of the impairment assessment of
the CGU of Yichang Biaodian are set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

CREELBN -EERHRREESE

BUMFBEHRR

24(a) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

22. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 22. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased Leased motor
land properties vehicles Total
HELH HEME HERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT FHT TET
At 1 January 2019 (note 3) RZE-NE—HA—H
(PEE3) 1,639 2,202 - 3,841
Additions NE - 2,740 465 3,205
Depreciation e (26) (2,085) (13) (2,074)
Impairment (note 24(a)) RME (K13E24(a) 117) = = (117)
Exchange differences EHER (43) (1) - (44)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NFNA=TH 1,453 2,906 452 4,811
Lease liabilities of HK$3,245,000 are recognised with related RZEBE-—NRFAA=1+H SBEBEE
right-of-use assets of HK$3,358,000 as at 30 September P& E3,358,0008 THERBEAE
2019. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants 3,245,000 - B TAAFTISHHEES E
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are R E R S - TH & 1 o I & AN ({7
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security TR -HEEETSAEERARNE
for borrowing purposes. fRo
Period from
1 January 2019
to 30 September
2019
B=Z—h#fF
~A-8E
—E-hEF
hA=+HHHE
HK$’000
FHET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets TREEENERS 2,074
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEMERZ (FAMBRA)
(included in finance costs) 228
Expenses relating to short-term lease HEHEERBENRX
(included in general and (FFA—MEITHAX)
administrative expenses) 10

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 47(e).

HEZRESROBRNFBHNKE

47(e) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

22. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 22. FRAEEEE @)

For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019,
the Group leases properties, a motor vehicle and car parking
spaces (year ended 31 December 2018: properties) for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to three years, but may have termination option to
terminate the leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one
year. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns a natural gas station and office
complex located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests.
The leasehold land component of these owned properties
is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

BZZE-NF-—RA—HEZZ-AFA
A=1+R#H ~A&EHEDE —®W
MEREEM (BZE_Z—N\F+=A
“t-HALEFEMR)AREE-HE
AR E=FHNETEHRIIL BF
RIPEER TR —FREIESSBHEE
1 = o T & IR R FE M Bl B0 ERER
BREEBIRGR &GN -REEHEN
REE A HEHENRER A& H
ERAKMERLETE A QA RHIBMIT
HY R ©

S REB A IR EARKME
([ BB RARIE R A - REE
NREYEE (BREABEE L)
MERLEAA RUBZSWERES
EVEH — IRIEA 5 - fiff i B R AT AT
Solkc WRFEAMFENHEELBE
NEBZEY -

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

23. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 23.

The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

BNt HERE

REBREMNTHHAEN R ERIETE
MEEHENFREEEFES A
T

At At

30 September 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZB-I%E RZZE—N\F

hBA=+B +=-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

At beginning of period/year HER ) 1,639 1,768

Reclassified as right-of-use assets ENOBREAEEE (1,639) =

Exchange adjustment ME 5, 8 B = (90)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TET - AH & BB 48

payments - (39)

At end of period/year KA FR - 1,639

Current portion mENE D = (33)

Non-current portion JEmENE D - 1,606

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

24. GOODWILL 24. HE
Yichang Shenzhen
Biaodian Energynt Total
HEGH RY| = BRESS wat
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TET TET FHET
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(P 3T (a)) (P EE (D))
Cost B
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NFE—H—H 4,556 - 4,556
Arising on acquisition of WEKBRARREE
subsidiaries (note 47(a)) (Kizx47(a)) = 8,005 8,005
Exchange differences bE N EEE (233) - (233)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +-A=+—RHK
—E-NF—-A—H 4,323 8,005 12,328
Exchange differences EHER (116) (613) (729)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-nFENA=TH 4,207 7,392 11,599
Accumulated impairment 2HHEER
losses
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—HA—H - - -
Impairment for the year FARE - 8,005 8,005
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +-A=+—H8K
—E-NF—-A—H - 8,005 8,005
Impairment for the period HARE 4,207 = 4,207
Exchange differences [ERER - (613) 613)
At 30 September 2019 RZZE-NFNA=T+AH 4,207 7,392 11,599
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2019 RZZE—NFALA=1H = = =
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\F+-A=+—H 4,323 - 4,323

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIREEBEBR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

24. GOODWILL (continuea)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

The Group acquired 49% of the equity interest in Yichang
Biaodian in 2016. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to CGU of Yichang Biaodian.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the
basis of its value in use using discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin and
turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors. Yichang
Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% (at 31 December 2018: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Biaodian’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group’s is 13.23% (at 31
December 2018: 14.41%).

24, BHE (#)

B &L -

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
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24. GOODWILL (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to Yichang Biaodian was HK$4,207,000 (at 31
December 2018: HK$4,323,000). The recoverable amount of this
CGU was below the carrying amount of the CGU of which the
assets belong. Yichang Biaodian did not perform as expected
because of:

(i) slow progress of chemical enterprises’ removals and
construction of new factories;

(i) decrease in existing customers’ demand on natural gas
consumption due to slowdown of the PRC economic
growth; and

(i)  customers’ expectation on stability of natural gas supply.

Accordingly, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for this
CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$404,734,000. Therefore, impairment losses on non-current
assets were recognised in profit or loss for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019 and the charges to profit or

24. BHE (&)

PisE: (#&)

(@)

(%)

ETRENRA PEEESZHN
52 BR [ (& /54,207,0008 T (R =&
—N\&F+=A=+—H 4,323,000/

T MRS EABMA TR E S ER
REEMBREELEUNKREE-

HEBAXRARERY REZ:

() AT REEIRE R B TRAE
REE:

(i iﬁ*ﬁ‘@?‘ﬁi%ﬁi‘ﬁﬁm%ﬁ%il
TREEERRBEMED &

(i) BFHERARMERTE-

Et AEEERZIR S EEBMIER]
HBE¢REBA - BEeEEEMDHD
Z= H A] Ui [6] 4 58404,734,00078 7T » A
- B-FT—hF—A—HE=_ZT—Ah
FAA=+HEM™ W%ﬁéﬁ?ﬁ%#iﬂ%ﬂ

loss are analysed as follows: BEMEEBER REZNBRNERS
LUl

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FiBT
Property, plant and equipment (note 21) ME - BB &R (HE21) 18,127
Goodwill S 4,207
Intangible assets (note 25) mrEE (M:x25) 14,287
Right-of-use assets (note 22) FAEEE (H:E22) 117
Charged to profit or loss FFAE=E 36,738

g7

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of JEYIZ FEEEE D &
N EE R AR AR (“Shenzhen Energynt”) in 2018, which was
expected to engage in the solar photovoltaic business. Due to
the changes in the state government policies on the construction
scale of ordinary photovoltaic power stations, the Group revised
its cash flow forecast for this CGU that leading to the recoverable
amount became nil. An impairment loss of HK$8,005,000 was
recognised on goodwill during the year ended 31 December
2018.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

EHRA R

HMEBELEAER T N\FUBRIZE
FRFE>BARIRBRAF (R
TR (BN EAGERE
%) - BB KBTS E A REE L
BERRZBEEE AEEETZE
SEEBEMNBSREENER AT
E¢BAT HE-_Z—N\F+=A
=+ HILFE BRHEEIAREBRE
8,005,000/ JT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

25. B EE

Natural gas
Cost of supply
mobile exclusive
Car license application rights Total
i 8 FE AR XRR
B BARE  BRUER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL AL FTHL
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(K@) (% (o)) (M5 ()
Cost BA
At 1 January 2018 R-—Z—-\F—A—H 1,620 9,000 236,400 246,920
Exchange differences EHER - - (12,076) (12,076)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\F+ZA=+—-HEK
1 January 2019 “E-NF—-F—H 1,620 9,000 224,324 234,844
Exchange differences EHER - - (6,028) (6,028)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NENA=1H 1,520 9,000 218,296 228,816
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EHERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—HF—H - 3,900 14,118 18,018
Charge for the year FRHAY - 600 7,892 8,492
Impairment losses (note 18) BEBRE (f:18) - 4,500 - 4,500
Exchange differences EHES - - (824) (824)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+-A=+—-HK
1 January 2019 “E-NF-A—H - 9,000 21,186 30,186
Charge for the period HAFEY - - 5,711 5,711
Impairment losses (note 24(a)) REEE (Hi5E24(a)) 770 = 14,287 15,057
Exchange differences R AR - - (823) (823)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NENA=TH 770 9,000 40,361 50,131
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NENA=TH 750 - 177,935 178,685
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 1,520 - 203,138 204,658

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continuead)

Notes:

(a)

Car license represented the China/Hong Kong cross border car
license acquired from an independent third party. The Directors
are of the opinion that the car license has an indefinite useful life
as the car license is transferrable and able to renew on an annual
basis with minimal cost and hence no amortisation is provided.
At the end of the reporting period, the car license is carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the car license as at 30 September 2019 and recognised an
impairment loss of HK$770,000 for car license in profit or loss.
The recoverable amount of HK$750,000 is determined on market
comparison approach with reference to market comparison on
respective car license in the market by an independent valuation
expert. There was no change in the valuation approach for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019. The measurement of
the fair value of car license was within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The mobile application represents the web-based and mobile
application platform for customer’s design of garments. The
amount was fully impaired during the year ended 31 December
2018 because the related business activities discontinued since
2018.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the acquisition
of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February 2016 and is
amortised over the remaining years of the contractual period of
30 years till the years ranging from 2041 to 2044.

As there was continuous loss made by Yichang Biaodian and
indication of impairment exists, the Group performed impairment
assessment on natural gas supply exclusive rights and other
assets which belong to the CGU of Yichang Biaodian. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 24(a).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

(a)

EHRA R

5, BILEE (#)

B &L -

ERERMBIE=TREZHEE
RER-EERR ANEMRAITEREK
LA A G FEE A EAF
HIRER - R EAHR S - RIS
HIR - B TR AR AR B & RETR
BEEEYIE-

AEBUHHEE-_ZT-NFHLA=1A
BIER T E S EHITER KRS
TR R 2 BB & B770,000% 7T o 7]
I 1214 %8750,000%8 7T Y B M fHEE
RS2 EMG LAEREROTISLE

EMBLEEAEr -BHE-S—N\F
+-A=+—BHLEFERE=ZE—N

F—A—RAE-Z-NAFNA=+E
- HESESEEY BRI AT
B EBRE _HALFEBR-

RBEAERNEANEPRFAREZ
WELRBERAF G -ANBEEEYR
EHE T \FELL BEE_T
—NF+ZA=+—ALFE FEXK
HEEEBRE

RARBRHUEEELENAEER
E-RE_ATHATREBE
B YREE-ZN—FE_F0NN
FIEB0F 2 FIA A K BN HE 34 -

AREEZRHRFERERFLRED
% $Elﬂi%ﬁ@%f§%&2§
REEBEZHRSELBNMNEMEE
ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ°ﬂﬁ%ﬁ2ﬁ%ﬁmm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RMB AR ZRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2019 are as R-ZE—NEFENA=ZTHZHERAH
follows: BFT

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
FEMRYL/ BRRER/
WEARAB B33t B TEHER AEERERERS TEEH
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

R-B-h% H-T-\%
RASTA +=A=+-7

DIGITALHONGKONG. COM INC. BVI US$1 100% 100% Inactive
RRERES E WEER
Great China Inc Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
EHERLA Bk 1B I %7
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
YEEBERAERAR Bk 28T REZER
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Inactive
Bk 1,000 T i %7
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bk 28T REZER
Man Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
9 1B REER
BLEEER ORY)ERAA" PRC US$1,060,000 100% 100%  Dormant
HE 1,060,000% 70 TEEH
Pickworth Limited Samoa Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EED E REER
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
LEERBRAA Bk 18T WEER
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EED E REER
Global Billion Access Investments BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BIGEBREERAA EBERAHS 1ETT REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAIL/ BrBRE/
WEAREE B34 B EMEX rEEEEREES L TEXH
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-h&E RK-_Z-)NF
AA=tH t=ZA=+—-A
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
BERERREBRAA 5 18T REER
Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RIERES ORI ERDA H 14,000,000 7 REZK
Yichang Biaodian* (note (a)) PRC RMB58,800,000 25% 49%  Natural gas operations
(2018:
RMB30,000,000)
EERA (fizEE) HE ARE RAREH
58,800,0007T
(Z2-N\&:
AR
30,000,0007T.)
King Sailing International Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRERARAF EBRAHES v RERR
Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive and not yet commenced in
business
BETMAERAA Bk 18T TREEBREARRES
BeEE (GFI) BER AR PRC HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Design and construction of new
([FMmaeR]) energy power generation
(Dihang Energy (Shenzhen) equipment, energy storage
Company Limited* systems and power equipment,
(‘Dihang Energy”)) technology development,
technical services and technology
transfer
HE 10,000,0007% 7 Rt RBEMEREERE SRE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAIL/ BRRER/
WEARAS B33t B TEHER AEEREREE DL TEEH
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=B-NE WNZZT-N\F
AA=tH t=ZA=+—-A
Shenzhen Energynt PRC RMB25,000,000 100% 100%  Commaodity trading
R R R B FE ARE HmE s
25,000,0007T
RYRERETERERAR (MFb) PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(Anhui Anjie Nengte New Energy
Company Limited*) (note (b))
H ARE BEER
10,000,0007C
BMZEMERRERBRAA (M) PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(Cangzhou Anjie New Energy
Technology Company Limited)
(note (b))
H ARE TEER
2,000,0007t
BHEEFEHREHBRAA (MEb)  PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(Guanxian Nengte Photovoltaic
Technology Company Limited)
(note (b))
H AR® EEL
2,000,0007T
PERREERESERRA PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
H ARE TmER
30,000,0007TC
MIBERRERRERAA PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100%  Commaodity trading
(MHI%E])
(“Zhejiang Anzhu”)
H AR BHmEH
30,000,0007TC
BRREHERERFRAA PRC RMB55,000,000 60% - Commodity trading
H AR HAmE S
55,000,0007T

180 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #



e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAIL/ BRRER/
WEARAS B34 B TEHER AEEREREE DL TEXH
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-h&E RK-_Z-)NF
AA=tH t=ZA=+—-A
Charmland Treasure Limited Seychelles USs$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EER 100% T REER
Hong Kong Sunrise Electric Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
Technology Limited (Not yet commenced business)
ERTATNRRERR B 10,0007 7T BREER
(HARFRERER)
Eternal Goal Limited Seychelles US$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EER 100% 7T RAER
Hong Kong Eternal Goal Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60% Inactive
Bk 10,000/ 7T I %7
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles US$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EER 100% T RAER
Hong Kong Central Environmental Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
Technology Limited
EERERENRARDA B 10,0007 7 REER
RERBRE (L) BRAR PRC RMB10,000,000 60% 60%  Leasing business of the steel
support axial force servo system
HE AR HEBEWMNRARERAEEY
10,000,0007T
P (LE)BERRAR PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60%  Dormant
H AR® EEXH
30,000,0007T
REOMIBER)RRERAF PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60%  Dormant
H AR EmER
30,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAIL/ BRRER/
WEARAS B33t B TEHER AEEREREE DL TEXH
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z-h&E RK-_Z-)NF
AA=tH t=ZA=+—-A
East Perfection Development Limited BVI Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
REZERARAA RRERES 10%E7T REER
East Prefection (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
REZRE (FB)BERDA Bk 10,000 7T WEEB
Billion Champion Business Limited BVI Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
KZEHEBAT RRERES 10%E7T REER
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
K% (FE)ERAF B 10,0007 7 T EERH
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
FEemEEERAR 0 10,000/ 7T REZER
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - Dormant
Mz (BB BER DA B 10,0007 7 RS 3
Bright Able Century Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRERES E REZER
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREBRAA Bk 1B REER
LW Manin Immigration Consultancy Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% - Dormant
Limited (Formerly known as Global
Manin Immigration Consultancy
Limited)
NEEFHRERARARA Bk 10,000 7T HEXEL

(AREREFBRERBRAR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even though the
Group has only 25% (at 31 December 2018: 49%) ownership
interest in Yichang Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% (at 31 December 2018: 49%) equity
interest in Yichang Biaodian upon the capital contribution from
two shareholders on 4 January 2019. JHitIZE R RF@AER QD
7] (“Hubei Biaodian”), E&#ABERAR R A, BEXA/KE
JREMR AR and Mr. Li Wanging (“Mr. Li") (collectively the “Non-
controlling Shareholders”) owned 21%, 24%, 20% and 10%
equity interest in Yichang Biaodian, respectively, after the capital
contribution and up to the date of this report.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still has control
over Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang
Biaodian unilaterally. In making their judgement, the Directors
considered the Group’s power to affect the board of directors
(the “BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian,
responsible for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian,
consisted of eleven directors, of which six were appointed by
the Group while the other five directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Biaodian were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further shareholders’
agreement entered into among the Group and the Non-
controlling Shareholders, in any events where the Group and the
Non-controlling Shareholders have diversed views in the BOD
meetings, the Group, being the single largest shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the Directors
concluded that the Group under the terms of the shareholders’
agreement had the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian after the capital contribution.

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year.

These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprise established
pursuant to the law of the PRC.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

26. RB AR 2R E (&)

Mz : (&
© TRBETEABHAKEMEBEARNZ

SRR B AR 2B - B EY
BEMRBRARMEHEAMN SRR

Yichang Biaodian

HEFA
At
30 September At 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z—hF RZZT—N\F

hNA=+H +ZA=+—H

Principal place of business/country

of establishment

% of ownership interests/voting
rights held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

TERLERRLBK

FERERSAZEEEER
BREEBAOL

FRBEE
nBEE
FRBARE
mEBE

BEFE

PRC/PRC

HEHE
75%/45% 519%/50%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
413,046 470,462
8,862 11,064
(103,586) (122,757)
(39,224) (176,751)
279,098 182,018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

26.

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

RHEBATZRE (&)

Mz : (&

© TRBETEABHAKEMEBEARNZ

ERERZHEARZER - HE
B AR A A FIRK AT S -

eliminations. (Continued) (%)
Yichang Biaodian
HEZH
At
30 September At 31 December
2019 2018
R-E—hEF RZZT—N\F
hAB=+H +=—A=+—8
Principal place of business/country £ Z 2@ K BER (& PRC/PRC
of establishment (Continued) FE, F
Accumulated NCI Rt TR ER 208,882 92,829
Revenue Wz 30,923 42,147
Loss &8 (44,560) (36,334)
Total comprehensive income 2HEKRBTE (56,645) (42,442)
Loss allocated to NCI DT IEERER 2 ER (42,484) (18,530)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &L EKR1E,/ (FA)BELFHE
operating activities 5,303 (940)
Net cash used in investing activites & & EBFT AR F 5 (3,865) (473)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  BEES) (FTA) FIBH & FHE
financing activities (2,757) 1,933
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and & NIRESEEE Cpd) B INFEEE
cash equivalents (1,319) 520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z—-AFE—A—HE-Z—-AFENLA=+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

27. INVENTORIES 27. &
At
31 December
2018
R=ZE—N\F
+=—A=+—8
HK$’ 000
FET
Finished goods 2K 492
Raw materials R K -
492
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EWWE S R EMERRN
At
31 December
2018
R-ZZE—NEF
+-A=+—8
HK$’000
FET
Current RE
Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUE SR (FisE(@) 2,871
Less: Impairment losses (note 6(b)) R E R R (M 3E6()) =
2,871
Deposits b 826
Prepayments ARG s 7,612
Others Hith 353
8,791
11,662
Non-current FERE
Deposits for acquisition of W BRARNES
subsidiaries (note (b)) (K 5E@D)) =
Other deposit Hibize 37
37
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales of
natural gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage
of the natural gas. For a few specific customers they can use
the gas on credit and the Group allows an average credit period
of 60 days (year ended 31 December 2018: 60 days). The
Group recognises revenue for natural gas pipeline installation
service when the installation is completed and the Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days (year ended 31 December
2018: 30 days) upon completion. For trading of copper and
petrochemicals, deposits are usually required and the remaining
balance is usually receivable approximately within 180 days (year
ended 31 December 2018: 180 days) upon completion of the
transaction. For leasing business, the Group allows an average
credit period of 30 days (year ended 31 December 2018: 30
days) upon recognition.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the

28. BIWE 5 R HAb iR

GEE

(#&)

HEXARRNEFBE Y NERMERE
B8 REARFHERERRARAE
A gL BAIUEE A R EARA
AZBEREFPME A%£ERFF60R
(BE-T—\F+-A=+—BLHF
E60B) 2 FHEEH AEERE
HEfBERARREBLZEREZ
Wzt BAREBEARTFRTEREBEI0H
(BT \F+-A=+—BLHF
E 30B) 2 FHEEH -REFRK
BlhERMEs BERATEFRS &
BTN BTRELN1808 (HE=
T \F+ZA=+—HIFE: 180
A)RKB-GHEEEBEME A5 E
ARHFREREIOB (HE-_Z—N\EF
+—ﬂ:+f5¢¢§:305)2$1’3
=EH-

RSP RBRBHERAAZIIZE

reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows: WE SERERSTAT -
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—hEF RZZTE—N\F
hB=+H +=-—A=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 2,849 2,718
31 to 60 days 31260H - 1
61 to 90 days 61290H - 4
91 to 180 days 91£180H 7,284 135
Over 180 days HBi®180H 1,158 13
11,291 2,871
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EWE S RHEMIBRR (&)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MizE: (&)

(@  (Continued) (@ (#&)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and EEMERFTEER  AEEMEKHE
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s EERERGTREERPZEEE
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits X UEFTRFPZEER -TFPZEE
attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with reference %ﬁ%%%i@ﬁﬁm.ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂLﬁ%
to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and sales B ANEENBRIHEEERKRR
management team considers trade receivables that are neither BB EUE T E&Fﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂifﬁﬁfﬁ
past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as continuous MABEZERESERFYARETE
repayments have been received. EE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEEKEZIEREFZEEEAAR
denominated in RMB. EtE-

(b)  The amount represented deposits paid to two vendors for (b) SFEERANBAANKEREMRBIRX

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

acquiring two subsidiaries during the period.

On 25 July 2019, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with a vendor, who was independent from the
Group, to acquire 100% equity interest in an insurance broker
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities at a
consideration of HK$2,373,000. A deposit of HK$1,400,000 was
paid to the vendor as a deposit for acquiring the shares from
the vendor. The acquisition has been completed on 31 October
2019.

On 20 September 2019, the Group signed a letter of intent
with a private company established in the PRC (the “investeg”),
engaging in development and distribution of healthcare
technologies and products, to invest in the investee. A deposit
of RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to HK$5,430,000) was paid to
the investee as a deposit for capital contribution. The deposit
will be refunded to the Group on or before 10 April 2020, if the
acquisition fails before 31 March 2020.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #
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29.

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

LOAN RECEIVABLES 29. EWRE XK

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—h&F RZZE—NF
hB=+H +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TExT FAT
Loan receivables, unsecured JEURE 3K - IR IR 19,802 29,504
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)) R EEE (HsE6(b)) (7,003) =
12,799 29,504

The Group granted loans to certain independent third parties AEBEB-T—-NLF—H—BZE

during the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019,
which will be mature between 24 March 2020 to 26 September
2020. Loan receivables are unsecured and are charged on
effective interest rate mutually agreed with the contracting
parties, at a fixed rate ranging from 0% to 12% (year ended 31
December 2018: 0% to 12%) per annum. The borrowers are
obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in
the relevant agreements.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loan receivables so as to minimise credit risk. The granting
of loans is subject to approval by the management, whilst
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the management.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

*jlﬁjlﬂ—JrElﬁﬁFEJﬁE:FﬁI%—
TRAER EXER_T-_FTF=A
ZtHEEEZZE_ZEFNA=+BE
H-ERERDEER REHNZTE
ET;?;’;EE’J,\IKE’%if‘J NF0%ZE12% (&

Z-N\F+A=+—BLFE:
0%ZE12% )5t B - fERAFHEERRKN
B EME 2 EREN SR

REBORKEE A EERRERES
BEREE UREREKEERR K
B3 ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ&’ﬁ@%mﬁmﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

29. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loan receivables are

29. BIRE R (&)

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

AREREEERZ EEENL T TR

denominated in the following currencies: 8
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—h%F RZE—NF
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
HK$ BT 12,253 17,661
RMB AR 546 11,843
12,799 29,504
30. BOND RECEIVABLES 30. ERfES
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z—h&F R-ZT—N\F
hB=+8H +=-—A=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FET
Unlisted debt instruments, at —EAETARETZ
amortised cost, issued by JEEMEBLA
a listed company R # 5H R AN 3,000 6,000
Accrued interest receivables FE U FE AT A1 B 150 61
(a) 3,150 6,061
Unlisted debt instruments, at —MFELTRAAIETZ
amortised cost, issued by rHmEBIA:
an unlisted company R E RN 6,500 7,000
Accrued interest receivables FE R 5T FI B 237 64
(b) 6,737 7,064
Less: impairment losses B R EBE (MFE6(b))
(note 6 (b)) (177) -
9,710 13,125

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

30. BOND RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 2 April 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from a listed
company with principal amount of HK$3,000,000. The bonds are
unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum.
The carrying amount of HK$3,150,000 will be receivable on 2
April 2020. The bonds can be redeemed by the bond issuer at
100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued
interest up to settlement date.

On 19 October 2018, 29 November 2018 and 13 December
2018, the Group subscribed bonds from a listed company
with principal amount of HK$2,000,000, HK$1,000,000 and
HK$3,000,000 respectively. The bonds were unsecured and
interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum. The carrying
amount of HK$2,037,000, HK$1,009,000 and HK$3,015,000
were settled on 25 January 2019, 1 March 2019 and 13 March
2019 respectively.

On 4 May 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from an unlisted
company with a principal amount of HK$6,500,000. The bonds
are unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 12% per
annum. The carrying amount of HK$6,737,000 will be receivable
on 3 May 2020. The bonds can be redeemed by the bond issuer
at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with
accrued interest up to settlement date.

On 4 November 2018, the Group subscribed bonds from an
unlisted company with a principal amount of HK$7,000,000. The
bonds were unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 12%
per annum. The carrying amount of HK$564,000 was received
on 25 March 2019 and remaining amount of HK$6,500,000 was
further extended on 4 May 2019.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bond receivables are
denominated in HK$.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

30. EWES (&)

B &L -

(a)

—ﬁﬁm%-a REE R —RH

7] 7208 AN € %8 53,000,000 7T

E@%% s%:ﬁ%z%#ﬁ%%mﬁ 1ZE E F

F E10%E S © AR H 83,150,000 7T

BR-ZZ-ZZFMA BRI ZEE

HFAHBEFBEITARMAEELRRE

Z100%ERBEEEE B HEN 2T E
fE D -

R=ZF—N\FE+A+NLB ZZT—N\F
+—A-t+NAhBE=_Z—NE+=A
+=B AEBHRR—H LT ARR
§# K458 52,000,000 7T ~ 1,000,000
7 7T 3,000,000 T EH - EH A
R WIREEFFE10%ETE < IR
M {E2,0387,000/% 7T + 1,009,0007 7T &
30150005%7? DRI =T —NEF— ﬂ
—+#HA- —hWE=ZA—RAEK=
_jlﬁzzﬂ'f':EI,%%;“

—ﬁﬁﬁﬁma REE R —RH
3FL M A B33 88 7K & B8 46,500,000/
THIES 1;%2%@;%&# I % B 7 F
F FE12%5 B © AR H 86,737,000 7T
BR-_ZE-_ZEFRA=ZRAKE-EF
AHEHFBETARHNAEELASEY
100%ERBEEEE AET 2 F 28
@o

RZZE—N\F+—AMA  AEER—
I 3E £ A RRE AL FE A7,000,000
BILIRES - EFAEER WZKET
FF FT12%5T 8 o BR E {5564,0007% 7T
ER-ZE-AF=ZA-+HARKE &
F#2 F186,500,0008 TE R —E—H
FHANBE TR

REBERWES 2 REENBITFE.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

31. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 31. SR&I$BTEHEETREERS

AND CASH BALANCES i ER

(@) Yichang Biaodian entered into disputes with one of @ RZZE-—NF+ZA+HBE HE
its suppliers regarding the quality of work performed EHpE - HERETHIRE
by such supplier on 14 December 2018. Pursuant to L EEEBEAUG - IRBEEED
the application from the supplier, the Court in Yichang R BEEMEREESKREBE
granted an order to preserve the bank deposits ERME RN A ARKEA78,0007T
of Yichang Biaodian amounted to approximately (FER4544,00078 70 ) BIIR1T1F
RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$544,000). HoZeERHEmEESZN
The amount was released on 11 April 2019 upon the HEERYIUMERER_Z—N
agreement between the supplier and Yichang Biaodian FMA+— B

regarding the settlement arrangement.

(o) The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash by AEBERITRBSEHZEEE
balances is denominated in the following currencies: AT Y EH¥EEHE

At At

30 September 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZB-N%F NZE—\F

hB=+H +-A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FET

HKS$ BT 2,824 1,220

RMB AR 494 1,077

USs$ ETT 7 -

3,325 2,297

As at 30 September 2019, the bank and cash balances RZZE-NAFNAA=+TH  UAR

of the Group denominated in RMB was HK$432,000 (at BB AEERITRBECESRA

31 December 2018: HK$1,077,000). Conversion of RMB 432,000 L (R=ZE—NF+=

into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign A=4+—H:1,077,000%7T) - A

Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of RE AR ABINERE T HINE

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange B IR NEB LA R AETE - EIE RTIES

Regulations. BHRE
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E-—=—

NF—A—HBE=Z

32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

—NWFNA=+HHRE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

2. 7HRA/FFHEERE

At At

30 September
2019
R=ZB-NF )i
hA=+HB +=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET

31 December

Building (note (a)) EF (ME@))
Leasehold improvements (note (a)) HERE (Wik@)
Motor vehicle (note (b)) RE (D)

Notes:

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose its building located in the PRC together
with associated leasehold improvements at a consideration of
RMB2,150,000 (equivalent to HK$2,382,000). The disposal is
expected to be completed within three months upon receipt
of deposit. No impairment loss was recognised neither on
reclassification of the building and associated leasehold
improvements as held for sale, nor at 30 September 2019 as the
directors of the Group expect that the fair value less costs to sell
is higher than the carrying amount.

As at 30 September 2019, the building was pledged to the
Purchaser for obtaining an advance of HK$111,000 to the Group
which was included in other payables and accruals.

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a motor vehicle
transfer agreement with an independent third party to dispose
one of its motor vehicles at a consideration of HK$1,500,000.
The disposal is expected to be completed within 90 days after
the date of transfer agreement signed. No impairment loss was
recognised neither on reclassification of the motor vehicle as held
for sale, nor at 30 September 2019 as the directors of the Group
expect that the fair value less costs to sell is higher than the
carrying amount.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

2,304 =
24 -
393 =

2,721 -

Hi 3 :

(8 RZZE—NFNLAZ+WABE AEEHA
—%ﬁ*“—ﬁwaﬁnﬁiaa%
A EHA R BEHETERES
ﬂﬁ*% R E A AR#2,150,00070
(& 72,382,000 7C) - BHHES
BRI EIES % =8 A N5ERK - WA
HEFREBHRERECETHIEAR
EHERBER-_E—NENLA=+H
HRREEE RRALNEEEFE
AFERLEXABREEE:

RZZE—NFNLA=TH BELE
B HE111,0008 T 2R (ST AE M E
NRBEREFTER) BFERBTE
ks

RZZE—NAFNAZ+MA AEEHA
%ﬁi% = HRINAREE RS A
%A 81,500,000/ L EEH/RE - 78
%ﬁ%$ﬁ%m§i%%%m5%&
QOKRMNTER - WER S TEEFHHLEA
BEHETER_S—hLhFEHLA=1
AERAEEE REARNEEESE
AAFERLERASRIEEEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—NF—A—HEZE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. BENEZREAMEKRR

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—h&F RZE—NF
NA=+H +=—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FAT
Trade payables (note (a)) FEAE SRR (K@) 1,670 28
Payable for construction in progress  7£ & T2 FE{f BR 7% 32,859 31,637
Receipt in advance (note (b)) U FRIE (FFED)) 2,884 -
Other payables and accruals A EMER R ETER 13,124 13,257
50,537 44,922
Notes: B 5
(a)  Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural gas (a) —Mms RARFEEFLERLEEE
as the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the natural B RAARNEBEERBERARI
gas. For liquefied natural gas, the credit period granted by TEAMR BRI RARME - HED
supplier to the Group was 30 days (year ended 31 December BETAREEN{EEHRAA[ (2=
2018: 30 days). For other business, the credit period granted by T-NF+ZA=+—HLEFE:30
supplier to the Group ranged from 60 to 180 days (year ended B) pEMEEME HEFRKRTA
31 December 2018: 30 to 180 days). SENEEHNT60E1808 (#HE=
E-N\FE+AZFT—AHLEFE:30
%180A) -

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt BEKNERBBEE2INENESE

of goods, is as follows: HERERDTIMT
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=-ZT—hfF R=ZZ—N\F
hA=+H ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
0 to 30 days 0&30H - 13
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,149 -
Over 60 days HBiE60H 521 15
1,670 28

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled
on 30 to 180 days terms.

194 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cContinued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

3. ENESREMERR &)

Mz : (4#&)

(@) (#&)

AEBERNESERFZEEETIAT

denominated in the following currencies: P EHEE:
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=-ZT—hfF R=ZT—N\F
hA=+8 +=-—F=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
HK$ BT 15 15
RMB AR 1,655 13
1,670 28

(o)  The amounts represented deposits received for disposal of
building and motor vehicle of the Group, as disclosed in note 32,

from independent third parties.

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

() REEFRHERAEEEBFRAER
BYE=WBNES (RERHZE

32) ¢

34. AR

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZB-NF RZZE—NF
hA=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Billings in advance of & #) TE A 5K IB
performance obligation
— Sales of goods —HEEm 5 46
— Sales of natural gas —HERAR 1,996 2,544
— Pipeline installation services —EBLERYG 395 262
2,396 2,852

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

195



e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 34.

Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural
gas and pipeline installation services are balances due to
customers under goods sales contracts, natural gas sales
contracts and pipeline installation services contracts. They
arise because customers pay deposits for the contracts which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

EHERE #)

HEEER HERARMEBLZRR
BERNEHNABENIEREEAL.
AARHERGHREELZRRBANE
NEPHNEH ARNEPINBBES
BRZWENE MRS BB RS
Mo

& 3
%H-
o
i
>F
>

Movements in contract liabilities: EHBENES:
2019
—E-hEF
HK$ 000
FET
Balance at 1 January R—A—BR&EH 2,852
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EEANERRaERNEHEERD
recognising revenue during the year that was FABYEHEE
included in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the period (2,756)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of biling  FE#EEXART R
in advance of sales of natural gas and pipeline BETERBENFIBELY
installation services EH B EEN 2,303
Exchange differences MW E R (3)
Balance at 30 September RNUA=Z+BM4&Ee 2,396

There is no billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(at 31 December 2018: Nil).

EHMYTER - FRERRBENED
ANFE(R_F-—NEF+_A=1+—
B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

35. LEASE LIABILITIES 35. HE&AE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BERERR BERERRZRE
At At At At
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

R=2-RF RKR-FT-\F [R=B-AF R-FT-N\F
AA=+H +t-A=t—-H | RAA=tH +T-A=+—-H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEL TAT FTEL
Within one year —F R 2,837 = 2,705 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_-FZERhF
(BREEME) 546 - 540 -
3,383 - 3,245 -
Less: Future finance charges HoARBREER (138) - NATEH N/A T3 F
Present value of lease obligations HEEEZHAE 3,245 = 3,245 =
Less: Amount due for settlement w128 A MR B E R
within 12 months (shown (MRBHEEETHTR)
under current liabilities) (2,705) -
Amount due for settlement 12BABERNEERR
after 12 months 540 -
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities is REBHEAEZEABIRIATEE T
denominated in the following currencies: B
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—hIF R-ZZE—N\HF
NLA=+H +-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
HK$ BT 3,090 -
RMB AR 155 -

3,245 =

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EBE R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

35. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018
has not been restated. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3.

36. DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

35.

36.

37.

HEEE 2

AEEDERKETEPREAGRRAE
BB HREERE16% LHRBENR -F
—NF-A-BHGe LERE
FEARBEESHENEITROSELHE
LHENHERMMNBEERE-R=-F
—N\F+Z A=+ HHNLBRENLE
B -@EEFBMBHREELE165%
ZRENE—BFBEHNMES -

BN EERIA

ENESFEOREER RERER
BEREFEE -

THBRES
At At
30 September 31 December

2019 2018
R=F—-"%F RZF
AA=tA +=A

=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FiET

Non-convertible bonds AR ] EFH 34,885 12,747
Analysed as: DT

Current liabilities REBAE 31,885 9,747

Non-current liabilities FERBEE 3,000 3,000

34,885 12,747
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37.

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

From 18 October 2018 to 9 November 2018, the Group
issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with total principal
amount of HK$9,500,000 to independent third parties. The
non-convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at
fixed rates ranging from 12% to 14% per annum in arrears
and will be repayable on dates ranging from 17 October 2019
to 8 November 2019. Up to the date of this report, maturity
date of non-convertible bonds amount of HK$7,500,000, in
aggregate, have been further extended by six months to a year
subsequently and amount of HK$2,000,000 has been overdue
upon maturity.

On 29 November 2018, the Group and the Company issued
fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$3,000,000 to an independent third party. The non-
convertible bonds are interest-bearing at fixed rate of 12% per
annum in arrears and will be repayable on 28 November 2020.
The bonds were unconditionally and irrevocably secured by
personal guarantee provided by a director of the Company.

From 14 February 2019 to 23 September 2019, the Group
issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount
in aggregate of HK$20,561,000 to certain independent third
parties, of which with principal amount of HK$2,000,000 bonds
were unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal
guarantee provided by a director of the Company. The non-
convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed
rates ranging from 6% to 20% per annum in arrears and will
be repayable on dates ranging from 22 December 2019 to 9
September 2020.

The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued
approximate their fair values. The non-convertible bonds
can be redeemed by the Group at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount, together with accrued interest up to mature
date.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

37. FUERES (&)

RZE—NF+A+NREZZ—N
Ft+—ANB AEEBEMBYE=H
17K % 48 %8 /59,500,000 7T 2 B T
MERAIRBES - T RRES AE
L IRN FEBE12%E14% 2 B ER
%ﬂﬁﬁg'mﬁn?_? NE+A
++RE=ZZT-hAFE+—ANAZAH
BE- Ei$ﬁ¢5% 4 #7,500,000
B A RRESZIHAEBRE—F

FLE N8 A = —4 - H2,000,0005 T2
HifgmHR -

RZE—N\F+—AZ+hB ££H
EARARNGBERBILE=ZFETAELHE
#%3,000,0007% 7T 2 [& & A1 & A~ 7] #2 jg
BHE - PAIRRESFIEEF12% 2 EFE
REFMEFE - BR-_ZT=_TF+—A
Z+N\BEE-BEFHARRERRM
2 AN PR AR S R R S AT B[] VR 4 o

B2 W F-_A+EBEE=ZT—AN
inﬂ_+:av$%lﬂa¥%¥%
= H TR % %8 520,561,000 7T
WETEFETIRERES HPASHE
2,000,000 ST AT R R EH A A A A
—ZEEELNEAABREGRERTA
BE K R IR EH B EE A
BN T HF6%ZE20%MH E E R KFI R
BARNFZZT-—NAF+ZA=+=
BE _7_7¢ﬂﬂhazaﬂﬁ>

BERTZTARRES 2EEERLE
NEEHRE - REBARAEELRS
100%EREZESBHA R 2 FEE
TR ESH o

#
El
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is

37. FUERES (&)

HEEHRRT2 T TARESSAE
A A AR B -

AEETARERES ZREEATNIE

denominated in the following currencies: BEEHE
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—h&F RZZE—NF
hAB=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 29,367 12,747
us$ ET 5,518 -
34,885 12,747

38. BANK BORROWINGS 38. RITRE

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZB-N%F RZZE—NF
hB=+H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITEE (Wik@)) 17,729 19,358
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38.

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

38. R1TEE (&)

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEEERUTIAEE:
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—h&F RZE—NF
hB=+H +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Within one year —F R 2,216 2,277
More than one year, —FUEBETHBBME
but not exceeding two years 3,324 2,278
More than two years, MEN FETBBRAF
but not more than five years 12,189 14,803
15,513 17,081
17,729 19,358
Portion of bank loans that are due for 7B — 414 (88 M 4578
repayment after one year but contain IR ER(EE 7 R 2
a repayment on demand clause RITIEEE D
(shown under current liabilities) (RRBEEETIR) - -
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR12{8 A REE 2 5RIE
within 12 months (shown (R mEaEETIIR)
under current liabilities) (2,216) (2,277)
Amount due for settlement A28 B 1&)5E 2 38
after 12 months 15,513 17,081
Notes: B -
(a)  The bank borrowings are secured by several properties owned (a) ﬁifﬂﬁ%u SRR iR (BF

by non-controlling interests of Yichang Biaodian, including Mr.
Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), a director and legal representative
of Yichang Biaodian, and his spouse, and a company held and
controlled by Mr. Xiong. The bank borrowings are also jointly
guaranteed by non-controlling interests of Yichang Biaodian,
including Hubei Biaodian, Mr. Xiong and his spouse and Mr. Li.

(o)  The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
the respective loan agreements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

ERREEREIERRARERREET

£ ( [R&

FEDREREB)BAZET

#@%M&Eﬁﬁ??ﬁiﬁﬁ&f%ﬂﬁ’]-?ﬁ

NEEER - RITEETHEEZSR Y
e (BEAIZEM  RREER
ﬁ@ﬂ%%&?f‘ai),\ﬂﬁﬁ%o
b) ZELBNHERSERWHEINE
ZEHBH-
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38.

39.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

—NE—A—BE-_F—

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 38. RITEE (&)
The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing balance is AEECRITEELARBREBEIRAR
denominated in RMB. WEtE-
The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is AEERITEENEEREIER8.01%
8.01% (at 31 December 2018: 8.01%). (RZE-NEFE+ZA=+—8H:
8.01%) °
The Group’s bank borrowings carried interest based on the RREFEAN AREBERITEEAFTE
benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s Bank of China ARBRITEMOBEEFR R S o mELE
during the both years. Interest rate will be adjusted if the MEEH FEFSEDRE ALt &
benchmark interest rate changes, thus exposing the Group to SEABRASRENEER
cash flow interest rate risk.
DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 39. BN —RMEARZFERR
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND RREBERRE
ITS RELATED PARTIES
Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JET — M B AR 2 IEE AR AR R R B 28
of a subsidiary and its related parties of which are non-trade BEH B GHEBERIBFBERT
related are as follows.
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—hF RZE—NF
hB=+H +-A=+—8H
Name Relationship HK$’000 HK$ 000
HE LB B % FET FRET
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiary note (a) 25,439 20,397
IR R R H B A B 5% (a)
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities note (b) 18,150 19,253
AR A REESIE S i=d(o)
43,589 39,650
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

39.

40.

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (at 31 December 2018: 41%) non-
controlling shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

(b)  Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian.

Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and Mr. Xiong represented
advances for Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure purposes.
They are not repayable within 12 months from the date of this
report. These balances are unsecured and interest free. These
amounts are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10% (at 31
December 2018: 10%).

CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL

On 4 June 2018, the Group issued one tranche of convertible
bond (“CB”) with principal value of HK$20,000,000. The CB
bears 10% interest per annum payable annually and has
maturity period of two years from the issue date to 3 June
2020. Any CB not converted will be redeemed on 3 June 2020.

The CB entitles the bondholders to convert the bonds into
new ordinary shares of the Company at conversion price of
HK$0.54, subject to any anti-dilution adjustments and certain
events such as share consideration, share subdivision or
reclassification, capitalisation issue, capital distribution, rights
issue and other equity or equity derivative issued, etc.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

39.

40.

B —EME AR 2 EERR
REEBEFRE £)

(a) HILZHREEAESZ
—E-N\F+=ZA=+
FEVERR AR R o

121%[%#E (R
—B:41%) 2

(o) AREARMICIRE Z FERRARIR o

JER L E R R AR A C RIERARE
EFRERARZT 28N - BERANRBHA
PARHRE A2 A REE - ZSE
EHRBEEARAE -ZE2HHEAE
PR R EIR B S ARSI BR - BRR R R A
10% (RZE—N\F+_A=+—8":
10%) °

BERDFEFARD Z T
K&z

R-E—N\FXANA NEBEET—
£ K4 %8 520,000,000/ 7T A A #2 j% (&
F ([RESR]) - TRREHIZFF
E10%sT B BEFX M -EHBAR B
BRTAPE T _TEA=ZAHW
FoAMRERMABRRESHNR =T
—EFAZRAER-

ABMBRESE TESRE ARN A8
BEOLABTLHEFERAARBN Y
B R R E A RETARRRE
TEH (P &6 RHFARE
MR BEANEET EADE  HER
Hp BT EaEaTETAF)R
B o
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BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

40. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL (continuea)

The maximum number of ordinary shares to be converted is
37,037,037 shares and none of them was converted up to 30
September 2019.

The entire convertible bond is designated as a financial liability

through profit or loss and classified as current liability as at 30
September 2019 (at 31 December 2018: non-current).

The movements of the components of the convertible bond are

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

40. EER LA TFEHFABR 2B
BRES &)
A B i R 8 B & & A&37,037,037
B2 —hLFNhA=+H %ZF

B fn I S e 0 o

R-E-AEAAZ+R 2BARK

BEFEERTABRZERABGELH
”xiﬁ?%ulb@ﬁﬁ% (75/3—'5 _)\¢+fﬂ

=t+—H:¥FRH) -

AR B 2 AR BB AN T

as follows:

Convertible
Bond
GE:Y 3¢
HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF—-—HA—Bz&#H -
Proceeds from convertible bond ATmRES TS HNIE 20,000
Loss arising on change of fair value N EEYELECEE 5,274
Fair value of convertible bond at date of issue RBETHEHZIBRKRESATE 25,274
Gain arising on change of fair value NFEZBES 2 W (1,088)

Balance at 31 December 2018 and RZE-NF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2019 Z—-NF—HA—RB2&EH 24,186
Gain arising on change of fair value Elzﬁ """"" A Bh 2 A Ay U 2R (3,940)
Exchange differences &N ZE (475)
Balance at 30 September 2019 RZE-NFNA=ZTHEHNES 19,771

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A
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E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

40. EER LA TFEHFABR 2B
BRES &)

40. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL (continuea)

AR B 2 AR E 5 R B S E N E
A=X#EER(R_Z-N\F+_-A
=t+—B: ZEAHREERL)ETH
B ERERZIERRMT:

The Group’s convertible bond is valued by an independent
valuer by using trinomial tree model (at 31 December
2018: binomial option pricing model) with the following key
assumptions:

4 June 2018
(date of initial 31 December 30 September
recognition) 2018 2019

—E-N\F
~HMHE —E-N\F —E-NF
(pERABH) +=-A=+-—H AA=+H
Share price of the Company KRAFIRE HK$0.46 & T HK$0.48 BT HK$0.241 7T
Conversion price (Note) WARE (M) HK$0.108 & T HK$0.54 T HK$0.54 T
Expected volatility Ta HAR 18 54.27% 49.95% 39.47%
Time to maturity B BB RS 2 years 1.43 years 0.68 years 4
Risk-free rate 12 [ P A X 1.84% 1.75% 1.87%
Dividend yield % B a2 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted MzE: ROBEERRNMEEERER=-F
pursuant to the share consolidation effective on 19 November —NF+—A+NBEBRZERHE G

2018. R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

40. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT

FVTPL (continuea)

The fair value of the convertible bond designated at FVTPL at
30 September 2019 to be approximately HK$19,771,000 (at
31 December 2018: HK$24,186,000) which was estimated by
an independent valuation expert.

The valuation approach has been changed from binomial
option pricing model to trinomial tree option pricing model
in deriving the fair value of the convertible bond. The
management considered that change of valuation approach
would present a fairer value of CB. The measurement of the
fair value of convertible bond was within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The significant unobservable input in the fair value
measurement is expected volatility. As at 30 September 2019,
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, an
increase/decrease in the expected volatility by 5% would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax by HK$25,000/
HK$12,000 as a result of change in its fair value.

40.

BEZEAFEFTABRZ 2R
BRES &)

R-_E—NFNLA=Z+HB EFEEAF
BEf \BmcmREHFQATFERY
£19,771,0008 L (ZE—NF+=H
=+—H 24,186,000 7T ) ' JhEE L
HEZERME G-

SHARkREFAFER HESTES
M IR iR R A S = N B
EERU-EEERA HETEZE
BRRRABRRESF 2 A FE AJBK
BHRZAFEAEBRE=-RAFEE

AREEFEMRACERTTERE
ABEAERER - R_ZE—NLFNA
B ERERBTERRERTE
BRT - WIEERIE EFPEIK5% @ T8
SR EERBEBARATERD
# 0, 425,000/ 7T, 12,0005 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

41. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 41.

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current period and prior

year:

EEHEAERE

ATARAHE R EFREANTERT
MEABENIEEEED:

Revaluation

of assets

BEEM

HK$’000

FHE T

At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—-NF—HA—H 55,571

Exchange differences ME 5 =58 (2,916)

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) FFABE (H3E13) (1,973)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZBE-N\F+ZA=+—8K

—E-NF—HA—H 50,682

Exchange differences VE N E R (1,198)

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) FrAEE (HFE13) (5,000)

At 30 September 2019 RZZE-AFNAA=TH 44,484

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused

RBEMR AEEARPH 2 HABE

tax losses of HK$221,932,000 (at 31 December 2018: %9 /221,932,0008 L (R —\F

HK$205,884,000) available to offset against future profits. The
unrecognised tax losses of HK$184,675,000 (at 31 December
2018: HK$178,314,000) can be carried forward infinitively.
The remaining HK$37,493,000 (at 31 December 2018:
HK$27,570,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will
expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

+=A=+—H:205,884,000/% 7T ) -
AEEE R BEF RERTIEEIE
184,675,000 T (RZZE—NF+=
A =+—H 178,314,000/ 7T ) 7] &R
H 4k a8 o 2 T 237,493,00058 7T (A =

T—N\F+=-A=+—H:27,570,000
B B EREEEER KR —=2

RFEAER e

MBEERRE-

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

R BETRRI R S AR - BRI B LA
MR EEE R TR ERERRELT
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BE-Z—NF—A—HEZE-ZE—AFNA=+BEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

42. SHARE CAPITAL 42, IR AR
At 30 September 2019 At 31 December 2018
R-ZE-hAENA=1H RZZ2-N\F+ZA=1+—H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
g ! kx| REE &8
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$’'000
T TERT Tt FTHT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &M% E{B0.00578 T2 i i@ i 3,200,000 80,000 16,000,000 80,000
Share consolidated (note (d)) BB (B3E) - - (12,800,000) =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each SR E{E0.0258 L2 & i@k 3,200,000 80,000 3,200,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
At beginning of period/year R/ E 4] 1,303,440 32,586 5,655,000 28,275
Exercise of share options (note (a))  1TEEME (M(@) - - 7,000 35
Placing of new shares (note (b)) BLEFTRG (M) - - 555,200 2,776
Placing of new shares (note (c)) REHRH (M) - - 300,000 1,500
Share consolidation (note (d)) BRin & B (FitsE()) - - (5,213,760) =
At end of period/year R/ F R 1,303,440 32,586 1,303,440 32,586
Notes: (T
(@) This represented 7,000,000 shares options exercised at a price () EHERALSEAER2HEFZRER
of HK$0.1112 each by the eligible participants of the Group. 0.11127 T 2 B 171 2 7,000,00017
B A e o
(b)  This represented an aggregate of 555,200,000 placing shares b)) EERZ-_ZE—NFELA+=H }E

issued on 13 July 2018 at a price of HK$0.071 each, resulting
in a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$2,776,000
and HK$35,504,000, respectively, netting off the placing cost of

HK$1,139,000.

(c)  This represented an aggregate of 300,000,000 placing shares (c)

& Kko. 071,%7EZFT%%§%«72 & #
555,200,000/% Bt & & 17 * BB ET AR
B R B 1 55 1B 5 B 52,776,000 7T
135,504,000/ 7T (2 1k BE & 5K &
1,139,000% 7T ) °

HEER-Z—-N\F+HA-REFRKO0.1

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

issued on 2 October 2018 at a price of HK$0.1 each, resulting
in a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$1,500,000
and HK$27,433,000, respectively, netting off the placing cost of
HK$1,067,000.

On 19 November 2018, every five issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.005 each in the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.025 each.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #

P& TL 2 (B15 39T 2 & $£300,000,0008%
BR & BR 1D - BEGT AR R A KR G55
&% Bl 51,500,000/ 7T % 27,433,000
77t (B 0k B & Bk 41,067,000
JT) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

42. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 42. R (&)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

FEEEAEREZBEREEARE L
FERERN WEBECERERE
FamMRRRTREEDH -

AEEZRBRLIIREERNEE ANE
BEREBEEERR BN EBEEZR
REB EEEARBAMAAE S
M SGAREARARE  AEEAARBIK
RS BITH  MERD  BEHE
% BOREGEFHNHEEENRERE
% o

AEEERRBRER 2 TEBFERER
AEBERKBEEZRNERERENE
RERAZFEEB L RARERITR
REME-

AEEEEHEEARRBY RFLERN
FCHEFELHE - REFAHBER
B AEELREHBEINTRRZK
B RERREAXBTHR - B-F
—NF-—A—HBEZZ-AFNAA=+
REME BiR BRREFGREE -
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BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

42. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible
bond, less cash and bank balances and excludes discontinued
operation. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

42. B (&)

AEBEFERERNBBELREREN &
AABLRTZAREFAERARE
@At FRAERENERITREME
EURABRES RS RIRITHE
Exéfﬁaﬂt%%%f%ﬂ‘%f)ﬁzﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁx
RAFBARGERED RBESHRERN

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

was as follows:

BELEMT:

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=Z—hLF ﬁé:%*)\i
AA=+AH —A=+—
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Lease liabilities (note 35) HE&E (E35) 3,245 -
Due to a related company &S — R BB R R 3B 554 =
Due to directors (note 36) FETE = 5kE (M5E36) 347 2,105
Non-convertible bonds (note 37) AR ES (M 5E37) 34,885 12,747
Bank borrowings (note 38) RITEE (M37E38) 17,729 19,358
Due to non-controlling shareholders ~ JE{f —RIKIE AR Z
of a subsidiary and its related FEFERR IR R K
parties (note 39) H #8375 508 (Fif5E39) 43,589 39,650
Convertible bond designated BEZEAFEFAEBERZ
at FVTPL (note 40) AR & 2 (FEE40) 19,771 24,186
Total borrowings BEEHE 120,120 98,046
Less: Bank and cash balances B ERIT IR & &R (FIEEST)
(note 31) (3,325) (2,297)
Net debt B %R 116,795 95,749
Total equity TR 277,783 357,415
Gearing ratio BEEAREE 42% 27%
The increase in the gearing ratio during the period from 1 BE-ZZE-NF—HA—BEZZ—-NFh

January 2019 to 30 September 2019 resulted primarily from

increase in non-convertible bonds and due to non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties.

H:Jr B HIf - ﬁ%%ﬂs\tt%iﬁ)}ﬂﬁ{
EHRTABREESREN —FHEBA

B2 FEFR R 3R e ELBR i 7 5K
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42,

43.

—NE—-A—HBE-_F—

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing
the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. At 30 September 2019, 89.47% (at 31
December 2018: 84.77%) of shares were in public hands.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B &

42,

43.

NENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

BRA (%)

SNEBHEINEOME —BEARBER S BERA
SERBIXMmET EVLABRBEED

25% MR ARIFRE -

AEBEFBH MM EBRRIEAR
BRENKERNDER  EFHNEE
FEFBEETHBRRE - R_T—NF
NA=+H" 82.47%%H (R=E—N
F+-—A=Z+—H8:84.77% ) AR
-‘ﬁ—o

B bash KRR REMBARE AT
SMNEBHE AN 2 B AR PR )

&1
(a) &=&£H
REFENRKESBRESHNER

cHREakEMEEKRERRES
BaEHRANZ -

(b) fEBHEKREN
() BXEE

BARBE_ZTTTF=A
Z%@E%ﬁﬁﬁ%izﬁuﬂﬁﬁ
BATIRANTEE S B A A

) IJéE@&%EEAHﬂZﬁ%EMé?a
ELZRFEZER-
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E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

43. RESERVES (continuead)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying net
assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC., DIGITAL
COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company together
with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The
special reserve is available for distribution under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal
arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

43. B (&)

(b) fREBHERBW (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 44, LR ABEB AT

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and
to provide them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the Directors
may grant options to any eligible person of the Group, including
() any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period from time to
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continuea)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by grantee.

On 30 September 2019, 16,400,000 shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 November 2012 (at 31 December 2018: no shares)
of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the Company,
representing approximately 28% (on 31 December 2018:
0%) of the issued share capital of the Company. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the
application or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The
remaining life of the Scheme is approximately three years and
to be expired on 30 November 2022.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

44,

UG ABERNSTR2)

RERDBREATNERZ A HEFT218
A AARARINREREAR1UET
By 122 49 o

RZZE—-NAFENLA=+H AQRKEAK
#16,400,000% & % E 180.025% 7T 2
BHORBEARABAR=_FE—=F+—A
ESTHRMZAETTFEIT(R_T
—NE+-A=+—B:ERH) EX
RAIEBITHRAL28% (R-T— N\F
+ZA=+—H8:0%) ‘BRIFEERTT
ETEASN  ETEIW AR TR R 178
IR A 2 = HE - RIRFT & Bk
BENEREGERE -FEZHTERE
WE=ZF BR_ZT-_—_F+—F=+
H g e

B EEAFROT

Year Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

£4 R A H BEH T THE

2017 21 December 2017 N/A 21 December 2017 - 21 December 2019 HK$0.556

“E—tF —E—+F+-A=+—H @R T+t AZt—-HZ 0.5567% T
—E-NAE+ZAZT-H

2018 18 January 2018 N/A 18 January 2018 - 18 January 2020 HK$0.785

—E-N\5F —Z-N\¥-ATNR TER —2-N\§¥-AT/N\BE 0.758% T
. RAYE!

2018 9 October 2018 N/A 9 October 2018 - 9 October 2020 HK$0.466

2N\ -\t ANA TER Z2-\¥+ANBE 0.466/% 7T
—TZZ2F+ANA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

eligible participants of the Group, which were forfeited upon their

resignations during the period.

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 44, URPREBRNSTR 2)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREZEFANREFMIFAQRIERED
share options held by employees during the year: 28

Outstanding at (Exercised)/ Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January granted during during period 30 September
2019 period (note) 2019
RIE-NE RZB-n%
-A-AH i AR=tA
Option type BRERL i RATHE () /BE SRR (HE) i RATE
2017 —E—+F 9,000,000 - (1,200,000) 7,800,000
2018 —Z-N\E 49,600,000 - (15,200,000) 34,400,000
58,600,000 - (16,400,000) 42,200,000
Exercisable at the end of the period RERATE 58,600,000 42,200,000
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE 0.547 - 0.706 0.486
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Outstanding at
1 January during during Forfeited 31 December
2018 period period  during period (note) 2018
RZZE-N§F RZE-N\E
—-R—-A ) \ tZA=t+-H
Option type BRESR RATTE il BRaf  BRRKR (M) HARTTE
2017 —E—+F 13,400,000 - (1,400,000) (3,000,000) 9,000,000
2018 “E-N\% - 49,600,000 - - 49,600,000
13,400,000 49,600,000 (1,400,000) (3,000,000) 58,600,000
Exercisable at the end of the period REBRATE 58,600,000
Weighted average exercise price METHHER 0.556 0.546 0556 0.556 0.547

Note: The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the fzx: BREERTAEBESERZHESE

I B 982 2 70 B 7 B B TR W e B i

e

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continuea)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended
31 December 2018, the weighted average share price at the
dates of exercise was HK$0.657. The options outstanding at
the end of the period/year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.75 years (at 31 December 2018: 1.5
years).

Options were granted on 18 January 2018 and 9 October
2018. The estimated fair values of the options granted on that
date is HK$2,947,000 and HK$4,857,000 respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

44, LR BEBRNSTR #)

REE_T-/\F+-_A=+—HIF
EEATEBRER S - K176 B B
TR B R0.657TB T N F R
BHR{TEBREZMETHHRT S
HWERROTSE (RZT—-NF+=A
=t—H:1.5%)

BREER-_Z-N\F-A+N\BEZ
Z-N\F+ANRERL -RZARH
Z BB ff 5t & F{E /32,947,000
7T }24,857,0008 7T ©

ZERFESER-_AARREAE-R
OB ABELT

Date of issue BITHHEH 9 October 2018 18 January 2018
—E-N#F —B-N\E

+AAhH —BA+N\H

Share price f& & HK$0.465 /& T HK$0.740 T
Exercise price (note) 178 (M5E) HK$0.466 7 T HK$0.785 % 7T
Expected volatility T8 B 1@ 50.30% 61.88%
Expected life T8 H 4 B 2 years & 2 years
Risk-free rate 2 [ B | =X 2.30% 1.32%
Expected dividend yield T8 Bl s K 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 2
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$7,804,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted
pursuant to share consolidation effective on 19 November 2018.

TR 503 18 3 AR R R 28 B 24 AR R
B RIBE T - RAHA 2 Wi EHE
RIBERE Z R RRTHR
TR IR AR EMER 2P E T
Bz

AEEREBE_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
BIEFERAQRRNMNEREERE
B9 57,804,000/ JT °

Mg BRIPHA KRG EREDRER-F
—NE+—ATABERZRAAH

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. XA R M BERRR L FEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) A2 EBBEMRRE
At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—hE R-ZZE—NEF
hB=+H +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1%  [E & & H 82 150
Right-of-use assets EREEE 893 -
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z®/E - =
Deposits for acquisition of W B ARMIES
subsidiaries 5,430 -
6,405 150
Current assets REEE
Prepayment, deposits and ENFIE - EE R
other receivables JE U L Ath BR X 472 586
Loan receivables JEURE 5k 12,253 17,661
Bond receivables B E 5 9,710 13,125
Due from subsidiaries A NGRS 83,241 140,710
Due from a director Bl —REERIA 426 =
Bank and cash balances HRITRIR SR 2,440 807
108,542 172,889
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables JE T E A BR X 4,921 2,332
Lease liabilities HEaE 926 =
Due to a subsidiary &S B A R FIE - 517
Due to directors JEfTESEFIR 145 1,460
Convertible bond designated R A FEFF AB=EZ
at FVTPL R &S 19,771 -
Non-convertible bonds PRI ]MRESH 31,885 9,747
57,648 14,056
Net current assets RBEEZFEE 50,894 158,833

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EBE R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i
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BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. XA R M BR AR L FEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)

R (&)

(@) E2ABBMRREK(F)

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

R-ZZE-HF RZZE—N\F
ARA=tHA t+-A=t+—H

HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TET FAT
Total assets less current WEERRBER
liabilities 57,299 158,983
Non-current liabilities eI =R
Convertible bond designated EERATEFABERZ
at FVTPL AR E % - 24,186
Non-convertible bonds A ]mRES 3,000 3,000
3,000 27,186
Net assets EEFH 54,299 131,797
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital fi& 7% 32,586 32,586
Reserves (Ees 21,713 99,211
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 54,299 131,797

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16 December

2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Tuen Ting

R F

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

RZZE-NF+A+BEES
BHETHTIEZTRRES

Wu Guoming
REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZE—NF—A—HBE_ZF—NAFNLA=+HHM Forthe period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. XA R M BERRR L FEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =® (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AT ZFEEES
Capital Special Share Other Translation Share  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve  option reserve losses Total
ERGRE BHRE RiEE EfRE RERE  BRERE 23 BB a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Fin Tin Fin Thn Fhn T Tin
(ol d3b)  (ote 430Nl (note 43lli)  [note 43 (note 43(0)) (note 44)
(WizEad)0)  (BE4sm)i)  (RfERasio)i)  (HEE43)iv)  (HE430)W) (WizE44)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-A-A 7,640 1,971 223,502 6,734 6,574 2,446 (153,484) 95,383
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (59,851) (59,851)
Other comprehensive income FEEEB2ENA
for the year - - - - (7,806) - - (7,806)
Forfeiture of share options granted ~ RUIE IR it 8 Fh - - - - - (542) 542 -
Issuance of shares BkhH = = 62,937 = = = = 62,937
Recognition of share-based payments %201} BER A - - - - - 7,804 - 7,804
Exercise of share option EERE - - 995 - - (251) 5 744
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-R 7,640 1,971 287,434 6,734 (1,282) 9457 (212,799) 99,211
Loss for the period BRER - - - - - - (73,563) (73,563)
Other comprehensive income BREM2ENA
for the period - - - - (3,935) - - (3,939)
Forfeiture of share options granted ~ RIE IR it BB I - - - - - (3.491) 3,491 -
At 30 September 2019 RZE-AFNA=TH 7,640 1971 287,434 6,734 (5,167) 5,966 (282,865) 21,113

46. SUBSIDIARY SHARES TO BE ISSUED

46. BTN E QA RS

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R=B-N%F RZT—N\F
hB=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Capital contribution received FEUROFE
in advance - 153,377

Pursuant to the agreements between the shareholders of
Yichang Biaodian and certain independent third parties, new
capital will be introduced from these independent third parties
and accordingly become non-controlling shareholders of
Yichang Biaodian. Advance receipt represented the amount of
the capital received in advance from these independent third
parties. On 4 January 2019, these amounts were recognised
as capital of Yichang Biaodian after the completion of the issue
of capital issued.
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Hﬂlmlﬁ? wZE
HRIBEoN —

ﬁ§$%ﬂmﬁ&'
SR 7 EAK o

EHRA R

=—

BUFE=TAKRERZ

NEFE—

AMA - #E2%

E/(#%%EEE u/ujfjﬂ

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F i

219



220

e RS ERAR MY R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 6 October 2017, Dihang Energy, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the equity
transfer agreement with EHZETEHEEZESZER A, a
related company which was owned as to 61% by and
controlled by Mr. Weng, a then shareholder of the Group,
and Shenzhen Energynt, pursuant to which Dihang
Energy agreed to acquire the entire equity interests in
Shenzhen Energynt at a nominal consideration of RMB1.

Shenzhen Energynt and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in design and construction of new energy power
generation equipment, energy storage systems and
power equipment, technology development, technical
services and technology transfer.

On 3 January 2018, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Shenzhen Energynt and was then became a
100% owned subsidiary of the Group.

47. MEBRERERM T

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £ #
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

47. FERERERMTE 2)

(a) WEHWEBXR (&)

B W B 2 R & RE 2 R R R

Shenzhen Energynt acquired are as follows: BERBEATFENT:
Shenzhen
Energynt
FYNRERESS
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: BWEEEFE:
VAT recoverable AT U [B] 12 (E FX 17
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE 1 FUIE ~ 1% & K H e Uk B 7% 1,202
Cash and bank balances He RIFTHES 164
Current tax asset MEBRIBEE 174
Other payables and accruals HEmEmEkETER (9,562)
Total identifiable net liabilities AIHAFABEERE (8,005)
Goodwill (note 24) EE (Msk24) 8,005
Satisfied by: BUTHFRER:
Cash consideration HeRE RMBA R #17T
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions: WESEHEEA RS ML FRE:
Cash consideration paid ERNBESKE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ENRERESEREEE 164
164

Acquisition-related costs of HK$667,000 have been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2018.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

U B8 = T M BE AK 48667,000/8 7T B
FARE=E-N\FF+=_A=+—
HIEFEZHGERERANZ —K
RITHHX -
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NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

8=

BA SRR

—NE—A—BE-_F—

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 47. ZEBRERERNE &)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WEMEBLR (&)
The table below illustrates the revenue on sales of copper TEREMEWEBHRKESIE
and the loss included in the consolidated statement of ERcHEHER s W RGBSR
profit or loss since the acquisition date contributed by the KETE 2B
acquisition.
Shenzhen
Energynt
RINZFERESS
HK$'000
FET
Revenue W25 64,247
Loss contributed to the Group BAREEER 2 EE (1,740)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EEFR A A

Had the acquisitions as mentioned above been affected
at the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2018,
total amount of the revenue and loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 of the Group would not be materially
different. Such pro-forma information is for illustrative
purpose only and is not necessarily an indicator of
revenue and results of operation of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed at the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of
the future results.

Major non-cash transaction

(i) Imputed interest of approximately HK$3,421,000
charged for the period ended 30 September 2019
(year ended 31 December 2018: HK$31,893,000)
was accrued to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and its related parties.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, deemed
capital arising from non-current interest free loan
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties of approximately HK$870,000
and HK$904,000 were accrued to other reserves
and non-controlling interests respectively.

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-ZT—hAhF—A—HEZE-ZT—AFNLAZ+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 47. KERERERMT (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METBFMELEBZIHE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAMBHEARNEEREEB AT
arising from financing activities, including both cash EXBEZEY BERERIER
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing B8P MEFHAELEBEER
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future REBGERERERADER
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MEETHFEAZESRENE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing REERELEE-
activities.

Bank borrowings (note 38)  S{7fE & ([ff7£38)

Due to non-controlling EN-HHBARZ
shareholders of a FERBRRER
subsidiary and its HEBERFE
related parties (note 39) (P339

Convertible bond designated T KA FEFA
at FVTPL (note 40) BaUARES
(P +40)

Non-convertible bonds TaBRESR
(note 37) (MizE37)

Due to directors (note 36) B EZHE
(H3E36)

Lease liabilities (note 35) M E &1 (Fi5£35)

' GLOBAL STRATEGIC UP LIMITED B BB EEMAIRAT  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 % #§ 223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E-ZT—NF—A—HE-_Z—AFILA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

47. FERERERMTE 2)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METHMELEGBZHE
activities (Continued) (#&)
Interest Non-cash Exchange 31 December
1 January 2018 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2018
“E-N\F —E-N\F
—-A-A Reme FISFAR FReE EiZ® +t-A=t+-AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL T FEL T FHL
Bank borrowings (note 38)  S{7fE & ([ff7£38) 6,000 16,461 (1,757) = (1,346) 19,358
Due to a shareholder of ~ JEFS AR AR RFE
the Company 25,355 (25,355) - - - -
Due to non-controlling EN-BHBARZ
shareholders of a FERBERR
subsidiary and its EBERFE
related parties (note 39)  (Fi5¥39) 176,704 (156,742) = 30,119 (10,431) 39,650
Convertible bond designated & E & A FEE A
at FVTPL (note 40) BRHRRES
R - 20,000 - 4,186 - 24,186
Non-convertible bonds Ta#kES
(note 37) (Fitzk37) - 12,500 247 - S 12,747
Due to directors (note 36) R EE3E
(Fitzk3e) - 2,541 - - (436) 2,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B-Z—hhF—A—HEZZZ—hFNHA=THHMA Forthe period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 47. RERERERME ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(d) Decrease of interest in subsidiaries without loss of (d) RHELQBZERRD M &L
control EEHE
On 4 January 2019, the Group decreased the RZZE—NF—AWHE K~EEB
shareholding from 49% interests to 25% interests in HRNEEZRMBRERIONRDE
Yichang Biaodian. The effect of the decrease on the 25% ° AR RIHEE ARER LD 8%
equity attributable to the owners of the Company is as Z2mF:
follows:
HK$’000
FH&T
Carrying amount of non-controlling EHECHFEREREDE
interests disposed (35,055)
Consideration received from BRIz KB

non-controlling interests -

Loss on disposal recognised directly in equity B EZR iz ER N L S EE (35,055)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group HE-Z-NF+=-A=+—H
decreased the shareholding from 100% interests to 60% FE - AEEHERTIMEA
interests in the following subsidiaries. The effect of the 7) 2 % #E R 100% 1 7507 > £60%
decrease on the equity attributable to the owners of the o NABHAE AL R D
Company is as follows: LB
Heroic Charmland Eternal
Sunshine Treasure Goal Total
Limited Limited Limited @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET SRV A TEL

Carrying amount of non-controlling B 1 & 2 3E 12 B 5 BRE
interests disposed 10 15 10 35
Consideration received from BHFEERERKRZRE

non-controlling interests S - - _

Gain on disposal recognised BERERER 2 HERE
directly in equity 10 15 15 35
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-E—NF—A—HEZ—NLFNA=+HHERE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 47. HERERERMT (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERESRHATE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases SFAHERSRERNSHEBE
comprise the following: A T&IE :

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018

B=ZE—-NF
—A—HB%& H=E
—E2-NF —T-N\F
hB=+H +=-—A=+—8H
B IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Within operating cash flows KEBREMEN 10 1,915
Within financing cash flows MEEESREN 2,389 =
2,399 1,915

These amounts relate to the following: ZECREETY AR :

Period from

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B-Z—h&F
—HA—HBZ% HZE
—E-hEF —E-NF
hA=+H = Hi=H
iR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Lease rental paid BENEERS 2,399 1,915
Payments for right-of-use assets {& Fi # & & & - =
2,399 1,915
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

48. LITIGATION 48. FF A
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian RBE_Z-—N\F+_A=+—RHILF
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the E -EESFMEES —EEEERRES

quality of work performed by such suppliers. Legal proceedings
were initiated by the supplier (the “Plaintiff’) and on 14
December 2018, pursuant to the application from the Plaintiff,
the Court in Yichang granted an order to preserve the bank
deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted to approximately
RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$544,000).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out that the Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian agreed
with the repayment terms in relation to the aforesaid amount.
Yichang Biaodian is required to repay RMB200,000 on
or before 30 April 2019 and an order could be applied to
unfreeze the bank accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was
required to settle RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September
2019 and the remaining outstanding amount on or before 30
March 2020. The Plaintiff has the rights to apply for a court
order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its debts if it
fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the Plaintiff on or before 30
September 2019. Amount of RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,006,000) are fully provided as liabilities of the Group at
31 December 2018. The restricted bank balance was released
on 11 April 2019 upon agreement between the Plaintiff and
Yichang Biaodian.

AR BBRHEERET IS
BofER([RE]) EREEERF
RZZE—N\F+ZA+MNA BRERE
ZHEFE HEMERDCESRBEER
7 RIT1F R H AR #478,0007T (48
B R 49544,00058 7T ) °

RZE-—NF=ZA+=H ERBFELR
ERRHE EPHINREREEFR
MEBBLLSEZEEKK HERZE
WBAR-_ZT—AFENA=Z+BHZAH
88 AR ®200,000c BEAJHFEES
RRBITERFE AESEHAREN -
—NELAZ+THEKZABEEARE
2,000,000t KRR ZE=_FF=A=+
BRZANEERTHMREESCE -WE
BEAREN_ZE-AENLAZTAR
ZRIMRESEE ARE2,200,0005T - 8
REERBFERBELEHESZHE
BHATHER - ARMS,787,0007T (17
E 710,006,000 ) ER=ZFE—\F
+—A=+—RB28BEARLEEZE
E-ZRHBITEBRREHEEZA
MEBRR=-_Z—NFEA+—BHFEK-

On 20 November 2019, the Plaintiff has exercised its rights RZBE—hF+—AZ+RH R&EBE17
to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian for FEBEMBFEIRBESRIIESZMA

settlement of amount overdue as Yichang Biaodian only repaid
RMB200,000 up to 30 September 2019. Since the case was at
preliminary stage, the management of the Group was assessing
the possible outcome that bringing to Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE M EE B R A 7

>

‘REAYZR RREEE-F—NF
NA=1TH EERHAEEEARY
200,0007T ° B 1R 7% 5 14 B 7 V) R R B -
WAREERENGEERANTTRELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-E—NF—A—HEZ—NLFNA=+HHERE For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
49. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 49. REMHEZH
At 31 December 2018 the total future minimum lease payments RZE—NF+ZA=+—B T~a#
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: PR EHEBE N AKENNRERE
RABREIAT
At
31 December
2018
RZE—N\F
+=BA=+—H
HK$’000
FAT
Within one year —FRr 1,571
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_HFEERTF (BIEEEMTE) 676
2,247

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated
for an average term from two to three years and rentals are
fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2019, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 22.
As at 30 September 2019, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these car parking spaces is HK$39,000.

REMENFTEAEERERLETRT
ENWES HAOBEEREE ¥15
HRAME=F HeKEHETE X
TEEEAEE-

AEETHREEMIVEHAE R
—%—nihHZ+E'ﬁ%mf&é

HEEDIAERIHENMNF220NE
%EE&Q@AW CTHRIZE—NFNR
A=1TH HBZSEINEHNKREE
T & A ¥ A39,00078 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

50. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 50. EAEIE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting REBRBERRCERAENT
period are as follows:

At At
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE—h&F RZE—N\F
hB=+H +-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHExT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the HEEWE - ME K&
acquisition of property, plant and BEAR R G R A5
equipment, development of systems G2 &R X
and networks
— contracted but not accounted for —BE[HERAR 7,102 9,281
51. OTHER COMMITMENTS 51. Hb&iE
At 30 September 2019, the Group had a commitment of A28 E R —NFNA
HK$973,000 in respect of the outstanding consideration for the =+tRH AEBEHFBAKE—HHBAF
acquisition of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 28(b). ZARBEEREBHAIERIT3,0008 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT NF-—A-—HE-F—

NEFENALA=+HEIR For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 5. BEALETRS
(a) Related party transactions (a) BEALXRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these BREZEMBHmEPHMIBYFM
financial statements, the Group had the following material pa LN IEA$¢J+T?&ELX
transactions with related parties during the year: THEBALIZEAR
Period from
1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=Z-h%F
—B-HE ®E-T-\F
—EZ—-h& +=-A=+—H
hWB=+HHH IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Finance cost incurred in AT BIBEE MR
respect of
— loan from a former shareholder — KB —Z AR E R - 4,811
— loan from a non-controlling -k e — KB AR IEER
shareholder of a subsidiary PR REBEER Z2ER
and its related parties 3,421 31,893
Purchase of natural gas from m— B AR
companies controlled by SREEBABEZ
senior management HEAFBERAR
personnel of a subsidiary 15,709 16,550

(b) Details of guarantees provided by related parties for
non-convertible bonds and bank borrowings granted
to the Group are as set out in note 37 and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-T—NF—HA—HE-_Z—AFNLA=+HEM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continved) 52. BBEA LR Z (4)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) XEEBAEZHMH

The details of remuneration of key management
personnel, represents the emoluments of directors of the
Company paid during the period/year and set out in note

16(a).

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the period/year was follows:

M3E16(a) ©

Period from

TEEBABZHFMFBESS
FABNARBEEME - L HN

B/ FRNEERRLEREBHEM
BBz Fr BT

1 January
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B=2-N%F
—R—HZ HE-_ZT—N\F
—E-hEF +=—A=+—H
hWA=+HHEHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short term benefits EHIREA 1,228 1,527
Share-based benefits LARR 7 23 BTt 2 43 A - 4,429
1,228 5,956
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-E—NF—A—HBHE_ZF—NAFNLA=Z+HHM For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 52. BBEA TR F (&)
(d) Amounts due from/(to) related party (d) EW () @E8ERE
At At
30 September 31 December
Name of related party Relationship Terms 2019 2018
R=Z-A& RZIZ-N\F
)y BiZ 373 AA=+H +=ZA=1+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FTAET
FERAERIRARAF Controlled by a director of ~ Unsecured, interest-free (554) -
the Company and repayable
on demand
FBEREMIBERAR BEARR—BREFET EER 25K
REREE
53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 53. AAREE
Apart from as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated MRzESmaBEmREMAE s FiRES
financial statements, the Group did not have any other I REBWESMEMERNKRAEE
significant contingent liabilities (at 31 December 2018: Nil). (RZZE—NF+ZA=1+—H: %) -
54. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 54, SREHEEE

As disclosed in noted 28(b), the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with a vendor, who was independent from
the Group, to acquire 100% equity interest in an insurance
broker company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liabilities at a consideration of HK$2,373,000.

The acquisition has been completed on 31 October 2019.

28D T REBEE—FE
E(?ﬁiﬁws%@)iﬂi%f‘ 2E W

CAE R B S M L R B A 42
/‘T(ﬁﬁﬁf&)i%nmﬂ& RER
2,373,000/ JT °

WBEAR - T-AF+A=1T—H=%
}520
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